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Chairman’s Letter
Dear Fellow Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of ARSS it is my pleasure to present the 20" Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended 31t March, 2020. It’s always a pleasure to speak with you to reflect on the performance of your Company in the year and
share with you our aspiration for the future.

| am addressing you at a time when the nation is grappling with a global pandemic, while simultaneously gearing itself for a
phased reopening of the economy, and preparing for life beyond Covid-19.

Last year was characterised by continuing disruptions in supply chain from China followed by the outbreak of COVID in China.
This resulted in challenges and opportunities and our team managed the circumstances well to return a strong performance in Q3
and Q4 of 2019-20. Our Projects Sites were shut down in the last week of March 2020 due to the nationwide lockdown. However,
through proactive actions by our team, we resumed our construction activities at different projects sites in a phase-wise manner
from April 10, 2020. Extensive precautions have been taken to ensure safety of our people. While the lockdown has been eased,
we continue to be vigilant and continue to manage the changing environment.

The year witnessed faltering economic growth and underutilization of capacity due to a combination of contributory factors.
Private sector investments, already under stress, were further affected by fiscal slippages at the Centre and States and tight
liquidity conditions. Consumption spends, which hitherto had been a robust driver of economic growth, lost momentum in FY
2019-20. Expectedly, both export earnings and tax collections were weak. In its bid to revive the economy, the Government
initiated several monetary and fiscal measures. Amongst them were a reduction in corporate tax rates, re-capitalisation of banks
and consolidation within the banking sector, initiatives to improve credit availability, faster resolution of stressed assets and the
announcement of packages for sectors like real estate and exports.

These steps did lead to some encouraging results. The onset of the pandemic however, negated these gains, dragging real GDP
growth down to 4.2% for FY 2019-20 as a whole. The lockdown imposed towards the end of FY 2019-20, has dealt a severe blow
to both demand and supply. In response, the Government has initiated a wide range of stimulus measures. Booster doses of
fiscal and monetary resources aimed at improving liquidity have been announced, providing relief to stressed sections of society
and revitalizing economic activity. While these measures are stemming the slide, it is likely that economic growth will still take a
few more quarters to revive fully.

It is this volatile situation which the onslaught of the pandemic has roiled further. Lockdowns in country after country have stalled
the world’s growth engine casting a long shadow of economic uncertainty for some time to come. A few countries are now on the
road to recovery and have sought to re-boot growth by injecting stimulus measures through a combination of monetary and fiscal
resources. These accommodative fiscal and monetary policies are likely to continue through 2020.

The period leading up to the lockdown and the subsequent stoppage of all economic activity from 25" March, 2020 has adversely
affected your Company’s operations in late FY 2019-20 as well as the better part of Q1 FY 2020-21. The lockdown was continue
till July in the state of Odisha, with the initial resumption of operations being conducted under restrictions imposed by local
authorities. Currently most of these project sites are working with limited capacity, and execution of jobs is progressing with a
reasonable level of labour workforce.

Performance 2019-20

For this year, ARSS exhibited growth and strength on all key performance parameters — even in the face of a stressed economic
environment. Your Company’s standalone performance for the financial year 2019-20 are as follows:

- Turnover of X 288.51 crores.
- EBITDA is ¥ 35.15 crores.

- PAT (loss) is % 7.99 crores.

- EPS (basic) is ¥ 3.54



/ A\

Outlook

The Covid-19 pandemic and its fallout makes it difficult to forecast the future with any degree of certainty. While we are hopeful
that the 2™ half of FY 2020-21 will herald better economic and business activity in terms of tendering, good liquidity and revival
of labour and supply chains, it would be premature to predict the Company’s business outcomes for FY 2020-21. The company is
putting in enormous efforts to mitigate the impact of the pandemic, and register enhanced performance in FY 2021-22.

At this point in time, we see prospects in the areas of Government buildings, data centres, healthcare infra, airports, metro
railways, water projects including wastewater treatment and irrigation, hydel projects, expressways as well as onshore and
offshore hydrocarbon projects. We are uncertain, however, of the timelines when these projects will take off.

We are all passing through a crisis of unprecedented magnitude, and | would like to thank Team L&T as well as our customers,
vendors and other stakeholders for the confidence and trust they have reposed in us. | also thank my fellow Board Members for
their invaluable support in guiding the Company and enabling another year of growth

Despite the challenges, the Government’s thrust areas continued to provide a business opportunity basket for the Company,
which was in the pole position to capitalize on the business prospects that came to fruition during the year. The continuing
weakness in the Realty sector was countered with a Government focused boost to the affordable mass housing and health
segments. With the Government’s focus on improving air-connectivity, opportunities in the airport segment continue to arise at
periodic intervals.

The construction of highways slowed to 28 km a day during FY 2019-20, from 29.7 km a day achieved in FY 2018-19. The Ministry
of Road Transport & Highways is hopeful of increasing it to 32 km a day in FY 2020-21. Competition in this sector has increased
with a higher frequency of smaller-sized bids attracting interest from smaller players. This sector is also beset with challenging
payment terms in Government tenders coupled with slow progress in land acquisition.

With a discernable thrust on renewable energy, the award of some contracts in this area has been gaining momentum, which has
offset the tapering of prospects on centrally sponsored intensive electrification projects under the ‘Saubhagya’ initiatives. As on
March 31, 2020, over 26 million households have been provided with electricity connections under the Scheme.

Our Board processes, from the activities of the board committee’s right through to the regular functioning of the Board itself, were
externally reviewed during the year and | am confident that they deliver the highest levels of corporate governance. Though there
are opportunities galore, we need to be very cautious of the present volatile and uncertain environment and need to make very
cautious decisions which add value to all the stakeholders.

I would like to place on record my sincere gratitude to you, our valued shareholders for having given me this privilege. | would also
like to place on record my deepest appreciation of the tireless efforts of all my colleagues, past and present who have travelled
with me in this journey, lending their shoulder to build this great organization. | draw solace that with team of professionals in our
group, our shared aspiration is surely within reach. Here, | would like to express my special gratitude to all the employees | am
really thankful for their cooperation and support.

Before | conclude, | would like to extend my thanks to Customers, vendors and suppliers, Central and State Governments,
Regulatory Authorities, investors, bankers and financial institutions for their continued faith and trust, without whom our continued
growth momentum would not have been possible. | would also like to thank my fellow Board members for their unstinted support
and encouragement and helping me in creating good governance culture across the organization and fulfilling the responsibilities
of Board. | would like to place on record the sincerity, hard work, commitment and dedication of the entire Team of ARSS. | seek
your continued support in making the Company more sustainable and resilient to external challenges.

With warm and very best regards,
Yours

Subash Agarwal

Chairman
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ARSS‘

Directors’ Report

To,
The Members of
ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the 20" Annual Report of the Company together with summary of
standalone and consolidated audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.

1. A. Financial Position & Performance:

(X In Crores)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19
Sales 288.51 459.10 288.52 459.10
Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax 35.14 32.72 36.22 32.12
Less: Depreciation 20.82 22.02 20.82 22.02
Interest 4.44 2753 4.44 2753
Share of net profit or associates and joint - - 106.99 (0.60)
ventures accounted using equity method
Profit Before Tax 9.88 (16.83) 10.95 (17.43)

Less: Tax Expenses

a) Current Year - - - -

b) Earlier Year - - - -

c) Deferred Tax 1.89 5.62 1.89 5.62
Profit/Loss After Tax 7.99 (11.21) 9.06 (11.81)
Balance brought forward from previous year (198.43) (187.27) (209.04) (197.28)
Add :Re-measurement of defined employee 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
benefit plans through OCI
Amount Available for Appropriation (190.39) (198.43) (199.93) (209.04)
Appropriations

a) Dividend - - - -

b) Tax on Dividend - - - -

c) Transfer to General Reserve - - - -
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (190.39) (198.43) (199.93) (209.04)

Earnings per Share (In %) (Weighted) Basic 3.54 (4.93) 4.01 (5.20)
(Equity Shares of face value of
T 10/- each)

Earnings per Share (In %) (Weighted) 3.54 (4.93) 4.01 (5.20)
Diluted (Equity Shares of face value of
% 10/- each)
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B. Subsidiary/ Associate & Joint Venture Company

(X In Crores)

Particulars ARSS Damoh ARSS Developers Limited
Hirapur Tolls Pvt. Ltd. (Associates)
(Subsidiary Company)
2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19
Sales - - 14.50 0.02
Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax - - 4.98 (0.29)
Less: Depreciation - - 0.26 0.28
Interest - - 3.45 4.53
Profit Before Tax - - 1.27 (5.10)
Less: Tax Expenses
a) Current Year - - - -
b) Earlier Year - - - -
c) Deferred Tax - - 0.06 0.33
Profit/Loss After Tax - - 1.21 (4.77)
Balance brought forward from previous year - - (31.01) (26.24)
Amount Available for Appropriation - - - -
Appropriations
a) Dividend - - - -
b) Tax on Dividend - - - -
c) Transfer to General Reserve - - - -
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet - - (29.80) (31.01)
Earnings per Share (In %) (Weighted) Basic - - 1.85 (7.34)
(Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each)
Earnings per Share (In %) (Weighted) Diluted - - 1.85 (7.34)
(Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each)

Dividend

Your Directors did not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

Operating Result :

The turnover of the Company in the year is ¥ 288.51 cr. as compared to ¥ 459.10 crores in the previous financial year. The
profit before tax is ¥ 9.88 crores as compared to ¥ (16.83) crores for the previous financial year.

Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associates

Details of Subsidiary and Associate Companies

The Company has 1 subsidiary, 1 Associates and 15 Joint Ventures as on March 31, 2020. There has been no material
change in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries. During the year under review no companies have become or ceased
to be company’s subsidiary, or associate companies. However, the company has started some Joint Venture (JVs) during the
year. A report on the company’s subsidiary, joint ventures or associate companies as per companies Act 2013 is provided

hereunder:
Sl. |Name of the Address of the CIN/GLN/ PAN Holding / % of shares| Applicable
No. |Company Company subsidiary/ held/ share section
associate in JV
1 ARSS Damoh- |Plot No-38, Sector-A, |U452010R2011PTC013524 |Subsidiary 99.82 % 2(87)
Hirapur Tolls Zone-D, Mancheswar Company
Private limited Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
2 ARSS Plot No-38, Sector-A, |U452090R2007PLC009201 |Associate 38.41% 2 (6)
Developers Zone-D, Mancheswar Company
Limited Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
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B. Joint Venture (AOP)

SI. [Name of the Address of the CIN/GLN/PAN Holding /subsidiary/ % of shares
No. |company company associate held/ share in
Jv
1 ARSS-ATLANTA |Plot No-38, Sector-A, |AAQFA8726P Joint Venture 51.00%
JV. Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
2 ATLANTA-ARSS |Plot No-38, Sector-A, |AABAAOO48E Joint Venture 49.00%
JV Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
3 HCIL- Plot No-38, Sector-A, |AAEFH3757R Joint Venture 30.00%
ADHIKARYA- Zone-D, Mancheswar
ARSS JV Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
4 HCIL- 113-A, Kamala Nagar, | AAEFH1678M Joint Venture 30.00%
KALINDEE- Delhi-110007
ARSS JV
5 ARSS - SIPS 129, Transport Centre, | AAEAA3620K Joint Venture 51.00%
(JVv) Rohtak Road, Punjabi
Bagh, New Delhi —
110 035
6 ARSS - SCPL Plot No-38, Sector-A, |AAEAA3621J Joint Venture 51.00%
(JV) Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
7 ARSS - BMS Plot No-38, Sector-A, |AAEAA4835G Joint Venture 51.00%
JVv) Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
8 ARSS-LGPPL |Plot No-38, Sector-A, |AAGAA3633G Joint Venture 51.00%
JV. Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
9 ARSS- Kamrup Chamber AAHAA8492L Joint Venture 51.00%
TECHNOCOM- |road, Fancy Bazar,
PRIYASHI ASHI |Guwahati-781001-
JV. Assam
10 |ARSS-SNKI JV |Plot No-38, Sector-A, |AAEAA8546Q Joint Venture 51.00%
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
11 |ARSS-THAKUR |[Plot No-38, Sector-A, |[AAJAA0912F Joint Venture 80.00%
JV. Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
12 |ARSS — ROYAL |Plot No. 38, Sector-A, |AAJAA1996R Joint Venture 75.00%
JVv) Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar,
Odisha, 751010
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SI. |Name of the Address of the CIN/GLN/PAN Holding /subsidiary/ % of shares
No. |company company associate held/ share in
JV
13 |ARSS-BDPL Plot No-38, Sector-A, |[AAJAAG181C Joint Venture 51.00%
(JV) Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
14 |ARSS - NTLLP |Short-Cut,P.O.- Awaited Joint Venture 51.00%
(JVv) Nirjuli,Dist-
Papumpare, Pin-791
109, Arunachal
Pradesh.
15 |SCPL - ARSS QOU-522, 5t Awaited Joint Venture 20.00%
(JV) Floor, Esplanade
Commercial
Development, Unit No.
32, 721, Rasulgarh,
Bhubaneswar -751010

The name of the Joint Venture which have become JV during the year :

Esplanade Commercial
Development, Unit No.
32, 721, Rasulgarh,

Bhubaneswar -751010

Sl. |Name of the Address of the Company |CIN/GLN/PAN Holding / % of shares
No. |Company Subsidiary / held/ share
Associate in JV
1 ARSS — ROYAL (JV) |Plot No. 38, Sector-A, AAJAA1996R Joint Venture 75.00%
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar, Odisha,
751010
2 ARSS-BDPL (JV) Plot No-38, Sector-A, AAJAAB181C Joint Venture 51.00%
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
3 ARSS - NTLLP (JV) Short-Cut,P.O.-Nirjuli, Dist- |Awaited Joint Venture 51.00%
Papumpare, Pin-791 109,
Arunachal Pradesh.
4 SCPL - ARSS (JV) 0OU-522, 5" Floor, Awaited Joint Venture 20.00%

The name of the Joint Venture which has been inoperative

during the year under review:

Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010

Sl. |Name of the Address of the Company |CIN/GLN/PAN Holding / % of shares
No. |Company Subsidiary / held/ share
Associate in JV
1 NIRAJ-ARSS JV. Plot No-38, Sector-A, AAAAN5116B Joint Venture 40.00%
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010
2 ARSS-HCIL Plot No-38, Sector-A, AAOFA4560D Joint Venture 60.00%
CONSORTIUM Zone-D, Mancheswar
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Sl

No.

Name of the
Company

Address of the Company

CIN/GLN/PAN

Holding /
Subsidiary /
Associate

% of shares
held/ share
inJVv

ARSS-TRIVENI JV

Plot No-38, Sector-A,
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010

AABAA1081H

Joint Venture

51.00%

PATEL-ARSS JV

Plot No-38, Sector-A,
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010

AAAAP8266E

Joint Venture

49.00%

BACKBONE-ARSS JV.

Plot No-38, Sector-A,
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010

AAAAB7056Q

Joint Venture

49.00%

SOMDATT BUILDERS-
ARSS JV

Plot No-38, Sector-A,
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010

AADAS6434L

Joint Venture

49.00%

ARSS-ANPR JV

Plot No-38, Sector-A,
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010

AABAA1158M

Joint Venture

51.00%

ARSS GVR JV

Plot No-38, Sector-A,
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010

AACAA1049A

Joint Venture

51.00%

HCIL-ARSSSPL-
TRIVENI JV

113-A, Kamala Nagar,
Delhi-110007

AADFH8758B

Joint Venture

30.00%
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HCIL-KALINDEE-
ARSS JV

113-A, Kamala Nagar,
Delhi-110007

AAEFH1678M

Joint Venture

30.00%

11

NPCC-ARSS JV

Raja House,30-31, Nehru
Place, New Delhi-110019

N.A.

Joint Venture

26.00%

12

ARSS-KKMPL JV

Plot No-38, Sector-A,
Zone-D, Mancheswar
Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010

AAHAA8368B

Joint Venture

51.00%

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of financial statements of
the Company’s subsidiaries in Form No. AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements of the Company.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the Company, consolidated financial
statements along with relevant documents and separate audited financial statements in respect of subsidiaries, are available
on the website of the Company www.arssgroup.in.

5. Consolidated Financial Statements:

Consolidated financial statements (consolidating financials of ARSS Damoh - Hirapur Tolls Private Limited being its subsidiary
company and of ARSS Developers Limited being its associate company) in terms of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rule 6 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and under Regulation 33 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “SEBI Listing Regulations”) and as per requirements of
Ind AS 110 —consolidated financial statements read with Ind AS 28- Investment in associates and Joint ventures and Ind AS
31 —interest in Joint ventures, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements are provided in this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a
statement containing the salient features of the financials statements of each of the subsidiary and associate company in
the prescribed form AOC-1 is annexed to this annual report.
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Pursuant to the Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 financial statements of subsidiary/ associate companies are kept
for inspection by the shareholders at the Registered Office of the Company. The said financial statements of the subsidiaries
are also available on the website of the Company www.arssgroup.in under the Investors Section.

Reserve

No amount was proposed to be transferred to general reserve.

Operations- Work Orders

Your Directors are pleased to inform that during the year under report, the Company (alongwith it's JVs) has secured the
following contracts (work order):

a.

At — Rourkela - Jharsuguda 3" line work - Supply & Spreading of track Ballast in between Sogra and Jharsuguda under
the jurisdiction of Dy.Chief Engineer (Con)/Jharsuguda, South Eastern Railway is awarded in favour of our Company i.e.
ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited by Chief Engineer (Con) - Il, South Eastern Railway, Garden Reach, Kolkata — 700
043, on 24" May, 2019 with a contract value ¥ 9.42 crores.

At Sonepur : Construction of Bridge No-677(17x45.70m-Open web through girder) on Tel river & Major Bridge No 675
(1x30.50m Open web through girder) over SH-41 between Km 237.200 to 238.400 of Khurda Road-Bolangir New B.G
Rail link Project is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-SNKI (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D,
Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Chief Engineer/Con/HQ, Bhubaneswar-23, 10"
June, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 27.55 crores.

At: Sukinda, Package- 2 - “Track Linking (Excluding Supply of Rails, Sleepers, Thick Web Switches), S&T and OHE
Works between Km.47 to Km.97 in connection with construction of Angul-Sukinda New BG Rail Link of 58.961 Track
Km (Between Rangamatia to Baghuapal including Tie Lines at Tomka) on Khurda Road Division of East Coast Railway,
in Odisha State, India” is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS -THAKUR JV (ARSS: 80%,
Thakur: 20%), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0Odisha. by the Chief
Project Manager/Ill, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Bhubaneswar, 1 July, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 195.42 crores.

At Sambalpur: Construction of Earthwork, Bridge Work, Protection Work of minor and major bridge, slope of bank,
Buildings, site facilities, General Electrical works and other miscellaneous work in section Deobhal (IN) — Barpali (IN)
in connection with the doubling of Sambalpur — Titlagarh in Sambalpur division of East Coast Railway is awarded
in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial
Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Chief Project Manager/I, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, (Sambalpur - Titlagarh
Doubling project), VISAKHAPAATNAM, on 18" July, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 77.96 crores.

At Azamgarh : Package- A1 - “Construction of roadbed and Minor Bridge, ETC works in connection with Doubling
between Mau (MAU) (Excluding) 0.00 Km and Azamgarh (AMH) (Including) Km 43.50 (Total 43.50 Km) in Varanasi
Division of North Eastern Railway, Uttar Pradesh, India” is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named
ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0Odisha. by the Chief
Project Manager-Il, 3rdFloor, Royal Pavillion, (Near Bajaj Sewashram), Modhaila to Manduadih Road, Varanasi (UP),
India, on 9" October, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 97.25 crores.

At Azamgarh: Package - B1 - “Construction of roadbed, Major and Minor Bridge, ETC works in connection with Doubling
between Azamgarh (AMH) (Excluding) 43.50 Km and Shahganj (SHG) (Including) 99.75 (Total 56.25 Km) in Varanasi
Division of North Eastern Railway, Uttar Pradesh, India” is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named
ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0Odisha. by the Chief
Project Manager-1l, 3rdFloor, Royal Pavillion, (Near Bajaj Sewashram), Modhaila to Manduadih Road, Varanasi (UP),
India, on 9" October, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 123.40 crores.

At Rayagada: Package-5A- “Construction of two numbers of Major Bridge No. 611 (Span 8 X 30.5 m CG) at Km 344.87
in Rayagada — Ladda section and Major bridge No. 624 (Span 2 X 18.30 m CG + 1X12.20 m CG) at KM 352.03 in
Ladda - Jimmidipeta section and other Bridge works in connection with 3 line between Rayagada (Excl) (KM 343.90)
—Jimidipeta (Excl) (KM 356.518) on Waltair Division of East Coast Railway in Odisha State, India” is awarded in favour
one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-ROYAL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate
Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Chief Project Manager/ll, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Vishakapatnam — 530004
(AP), India, on 15" October, 2019 with a contract value of % 60.57 crores.

At Rayagada: Package-5A-"Construction of Roadbed, Minor Bridges, Service Buildings including amenities, Passenger
amenities at stations and related works along with General Electrical works in connection with 3 Line between Rayagada
(Excl) (KM 343.90) - Jimidipeta (Excl) (KM 356.518) on Waltair Division of East Coast Railway in Odisha State, India,
is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar
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Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Chief Project Manager/ll, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited,(Vizianagaram
— Titlagarh 3 Line Project), Vishakapatnam, India, on 15" October, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 50.46 crores.

At Paradip: Construction of handling platforms, Railway track, truck parking area, buildings and other ancillary facilities
for IFFCO at MMLP Paradip, Odisha, is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-BDPL (JV),
Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Group General Manager
(EC), CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD., C-3 Mathura Road, Opposite Apollo Hospital, New Delhi — 110
076, on 17" October, 2019 with a contract value of % 76.15 crores.

At — Jagdalpur - Repair and restoration of Plant Road Network at NISP is awarded in favour of our Company i.e. ARSS
Infrastructure Projects Limited by Executive Director (NISP), NMDC Iron & Steel Plant, Nagarnar, Jagdalpur, CG, on
18" October, 2019 with a contract value ¥ 19.33 Lacs.

At — Kendrapara - Construction of H.L.Bridge over river Gobari at Ch.0/250 Km and road from 0/000 Km to 0/700 Km for
construction of alternative road to Kendrapara Town under State Plan, is awarded in favour of our Company i.e. ARSS
Infrastructure Projects Limited by Executive Engineer, Kendrapara (R&B) Division, Kendrapara, on 25" October, 2019
with a contract value ¥ 10.52 crores.

At Titlagarh : Construction of Earth Work, Major and Minor Bridges, Protection work of minor and major bridge, slope of
bank, Buildings, PF Shelter FOB, Platform and passenger amenities, site facilities, General Electrical works and other
miscellaneous work in section Budmal (IN) - Titlagarh (IN) (19.71 Kms) in connection with the doubling of Sambalpur-
Titlagarh in Sambalpur division of East Coast Railway in the State of Odisha, India, is awarded in favour one of our
Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-
751010,0disha3 by the Chief Project Manager/I, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Vishakhapatnam — 530004 (AP), on 12
November, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 75.42 crores.

At — Sonepur - Construction of Portal Frame Bridge & Road from 2/385 to 3/585 Km of Ring road at Sonepur in the
district of Subarnpur under Deposit Scheme., is awarded in favour of our Company i.e. ARSS Infrastructure Projects
Limited by Chief Engineer, D.P.I & Roads (E.E. Sonepur), on 18" November, 2019 with a contract value ¥ 45.80 crores.

At Nirjuli: Construction of 2-lane road of Potin to Pangin section of NH-13 from Km 0.00 to Km 44.35 (Package-1) in
the State of Arunachal Pradesh under Arunachal Pradesh Package of Roads and Highways of SARDP-NE, is awarded
in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-NTLLP (JV), Nirjuli Short-Cut P.O.-Nirjuli, District Papunpare
Arunachal Pradesh 791109. by the Chief Engineer (Zone-V), MoRTH, New Delhi — 110 001, on 26" November, 2019 with
a contract value of ¥ 281.11 crores

At — Tangaria- Construction of ROB at Ch-62291 between Tangaria to Bhuban RCC Box Bridge No. 125 (2x7.5x7.563)
under Angul-Sukinda New BG Rail Link Project on Khurda Road Division, East Coast Railway in Odisha State, India,
is awarded in favour of our Company i.e. ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited by Chief Project Manager-l, Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited, Bhubaneswar, on 28" November, 2019 with a contract value ¥ 12.42 crores.

At — Sambalpur - Execution of P-Way Linking works (excluding supply of rail, ordinary track sleeper & thick web
switches) including yard remodeling and other miscellaneous works like widening and extension of Platforms, FOB,
Goods Platforms, Passenger amenities, Earth work, S&T works, General Electrical works and OHE/RE works in section
Deobahal(IN)-Barpali(IN) in connection with the doubling of Sambalpur-Titlagarh in Sambalpur division of East Coast
Railway, is awarded in favour of our Company i.e. ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited by CPM-I, RVNL, (Sambalpur
— Titlagarh Doubling Project), North Block 2™ floor, Jeevan Samrudhi LIC Building, Thikkana Road, Vishakhapatnam —
530004 (AP), on 17" February, 2020 with a contract value ¥ 130.09 crores.

Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and associates companies are included in the consolidated
financial statement.

CREDIT Rating
The accounts of the company is NPA since 2012, therefore no rating has been assigned to the company.
Listing with stock exchanges

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the financial year 2020-21 to The Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited where the Company’s Shares are listed.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report:

As required under regulation 34 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report is enclosed as a part of this report as ‘Annexure -A’.
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Corporate Governance and Shareholders Information:

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adheres to the Corporate
Governance requirements as stipulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The report on Corporate
Governance as prescribed in Schedule V (C) of the SEBI Listing Regulations forms an integral part of this Annual Report.
The requisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance along-with a declaration signed by Managing Director stating that the members of the Board of Directors and
Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the respective codes of conduct of the Board of Directors and
Senior Management is attached to the report on Corporate Governance. A report on Corporate Governance is included as
a part of this Annual Report as ‘Annexure —-B’.

The extract of the annual return as provided under sub-section (3) of section 92;

As per the provisions of section 92(3) of the companies act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, the extract of the Annual
Return for FY 2020 is given in Annexure —C in the prescribed Form No. MGT-9, which is a part of this report. The same is
available on http://arssgroup.in/pdf/MGT-9_%2031032020.pdf

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of your Company had already constituted various Committees in compliance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee and CSR Committee.

During financial year 2014-15, in accordance with the provisions of the erstwhile Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the
Board had voluntarily constituted the Risk Management Committee.

All decisions pertaining to the constitution of Committees, appointment of members and fixing of terms of reference / role of
the Committees are taken by the Board of Directors.

Details of the role and composition of these Committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial year and
attendance at these meetings, are provided in the Corporate Governance Section of the Annual Report

Number of Board Meetings:

Four Board Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. The dates
on which the Board Meetings were held are as follows:

28" May, 2019, 12" August, 2019, 14" November, 2019 and 14" February, 2020.
Committees of the Board of Directors
a. Audit Committee

The company has in place an Audit Committee in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
rules made there under and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. The details relating to the same are given in Annexure B’ of the Board Report on the Corporate Governance
forming part of this report. Members are requested to refer to point No. 4 of Corporate Governance Report attached with
this annual report.

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The company has in place Nomination and Remuneration Committee in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the rules made there under and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The details relating to the same are given in Annexure B’ of the Board Report on the Corporate
Governance forming part of this report. Members are requested to refer to point No. 5 of Corporate Governance Report
attached with this annual report.

c. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR):

The company has in place Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) in terms of the requirements of section
135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The details relating to the same are given in Annexure B’ of the
Board Report on the Corporate Governance forming part of this report. Members are requested to refer to point No. 6 of
Corporate Governance Report attached with this annual report.
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d. Shareholders Relationship Committee

The company has in place Shareholders Relationship Committee in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the rules made there under and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The details relating to the same are given in Annexure B’ of the Board Report on the Corporate
Governance forming part of this report. Members are requested to refer to point No. 7 of Corporate Governance Report
attached with this annual report.

Dematerialization of shares:

Physical/ NSDL/ CDSL/Summary Report as on 31 March, 2020, representing 99.94% of total Equity Share Capital of the
Company were held in dematerialized form. The Company’s Registrars is Bigshare Services Private Limited, 1% Floor, Bharat
Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400059, Maharashtra.

Particulars Shareh;\::;sf % | No. of Shares %
CDSL 8045 46.86% 13458612 59.19%
NSDL 9116 53.10% 9266627 40.75%
PHYSICAL 8 0.04% 12727 0.06%
TOTAL 17169 100.00% 22737966 100.00%

Public deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act

Your Company has not invited any deposit from public and shareholders. So, the provisions of the Chapter V of the Companies
Act, 2013 are not attracted.

Auditors: Statutory Auditors:

At the Nineteenth AGM held on September 25, 2019 the Members approved appointment of M/s. A R M S & Associates,
Chartered Accountant (Firm’s Registration No. 013019N) of Gurugram as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for
a period of five years from the conclusion of that AGM till the conclusion of the twenty-forth AGM.

Cost Auditors:

Company has maintained proper cost records and books of account pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government
for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products/
services.

M/s. Asutosh & Associates, Cost Accountants, Bhubaneswar were appointed as Cost Auditors for auditing the cost accounts
of your Company for the year ended 315t March, 2020 by the Board of Directors pursuant to the Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

Secretarial Auditors:

M/s Sunita Mohanty & Associates., a firm of practicing Company Secretaries, Bhubaneswar were appointed as Secretarial
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2019-20 by the Board of Directors pursuant to the Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The
Secretarial Audit Report submitted by M/s Sunita Mohanty & Associates, is enclosed as a part of this report ‘Annexure-D’.
The secretarial Audit Report deport doesn’t have any qualifications however there are some matters of emphasis marked
by the auditors. In the opinion of the management all matters pending before concern authorities and will be settled. These
matters will not impact the company’s going concern.

Internal Auditors:

M/s. PR & Associates, Cost Accountants, Bhubaneswar were appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2019-20 by the Board of Directors pursuant to the Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Report of Auditors:
Statutory Auditors
Our reply to the qualifications of Auditors: -

Basis for Qualified Opinion on standalone Financial Statements

12
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a)

In absence of relevant records, Contract-wise surplus/loss has neither been ascertained nor recognized in compliance
with Ind AS-115 ‘Revenue from contract with customers.

Company Reply: During the work execution period there is escalation claim, revision of contact value, extension of
completion period, etc due to which unpredictable variation in reliable estimation of revenue and cost. Also the allocation
of combine Operating overhead, Head office overhead and Financial Cost is not possible due to combine use or high
swapping of resources, size of the Contracts. Hence financial implication of the qualification is not quantifiable.

The company has overdue accumulated secured debts amounting to ¥ 1613.26 Crores out of which ¥ 121.03 Crores
subject to interest reconciliation from 01.10.2018 and ¥ 1492.23 Crores subject to reconciliation of interest thereon from
01.07.2016. Banks have classified the accounts as NPA. No interest has been charged on these secured debts to the
Profit & Loss account resulting in understatement of loss to that extent and understatement of liability. Secured lenders
have served notices on various dates under section 13(2) of Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 for recovery of their dues, Various Secured Lenders have moved to National
Company Law Tribunal towards their recovery of dues under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, and their application is still
pending for acceptance at NCLT Level

Company Reply: The Company has not provided interest on NPA accounts, Since the outstanding amount is not
quantifiable and the company is in the process for one time settlement with the various banks and However the Bank of
India declined the proposal and moved to NCLT but the case is not yet admitted.

Bank statements of Various Accounts has not been provided to us due to same has been classified as Non-Performing
Assets by Respective Banks. So we are unable to ascertain balances and transaction with these banks.

Company Reply: the accounts became NPA therefore bank statements are not provided by the banks. The company is
in the process for one time settlement with the banks.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Consolidated Financial Statements

a)

In absence of relevant records, Contract-wise surplus/loss of holding company has neither been ascertained nor
recognized in compliance with Ind AS-115 ‘Revenue from contract with customers.

Company Reply: During the work execution period there is escalation claim, revision of contact value, extension of
completion period, etc due to which unpredictable variation in reliable estimation of revenue and cost. Also the allocation
of combine Operating overhead, Head office overhead and Financial Cost is not possible due to combine use or high
swapping of resources, size of the Contracts. Hence financial implication of the qualification is not quantifiable.

The company has overdue accumulated secured debts amounting to ¥ 1613.26 Crores out of which ¥ 121.03 Crores
subject to interest reconciliation from 01.10.2018 and ¥ 1492.23 Crores subject to reconciliation of interest thereon from
01.07.2016. Banks have classified the accounts as NPA. No interest has been charged on these secured debts to the
Profit & Loss account resulting in understatement of loss to that extent and understatement of liability. Secured lenders
have served notices on various dates under section 13(2) of Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 for recovery of their dues, Various Secured Lenders have moved to National
Company Law Tribunal towards their recovery of dues under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, and their application is still
pending for acceptance at NCLT Level.

Company Reply: The Company has not provided interest on NPA accounts, Since the outstanding amount is not
quantifiable and the company is in the process for one time settlement with the various banks and However the Bank of
India declined the proposal and moved to NCLT but the case is not yet admitted.

Bank statements of Various Accounts has not been provided to us due to same has been classified as Non-Performing
Assets by Respective Banks. So we are unable to ascertain balances and transaction with these banks.

Company Reply: The account became NPA for both the cases therefore bank statements are not provided by the
banks. The company is in the process for one time settlement with the banks.

In the absence of audited books of accounts of ARSS-SIPS JV, ARSS TechnocomPriyashiAashi JV and ARSS-BMS JV,
financial data from these entity have not been included in consolidation of financial statement.

Company Reply: The accounts of the JVs are under the control of respective JV Partners i.e. Shyam Indus Power
Solutions Pvt Ltd, BMS Projects and M/s. TECHNOCOM. The accounts of these JVs are yet to be finalized from their
end. Hence financial implication for the JV is not quantifiable. However the accounting effect of the discrepancies, if any
after the finalization of its accounts will be given at current date
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e) In case of M/s. ARSS Damoh-Hirapur Tolls Pvt. Ltd; wherein, status of rights and title on the Capital work-in-progress
valued at ¥ 84.68 Crores has neither been ascertained nor the effect of the same has been accounted for in the financial
statements.

Company Reply: We have filed Arbitration claim before MPRDCL for rights on the title, the matter is subjudice.

f)  Incase of M/s. ARSS Damoh-Hirapur Tolls Pvt. Ltd; wherein, in absence of details of physical verification of Capital Work
in Progress, discrepancies, if any, between book and physical balance could not be ascertained including effect of the
same in the financial statements.

Company Reply: The work has been terminated since long and mater is subjudice and therefore it is difficult to do
physical verification.

g) Incase of HCIL -ADHIKARYA- ARSS JV, wherein, status of rights, title and recoverability of the Work-In-Progress valued
at ¥ 165.38 Crores has neither been verified and ascertained nor the effect of the same has been accounted for in the
financial statement.

Company Reply: Since the matter is in Arbitration, the Company has not booked the Work in Progress in revenues,
awaiting the final decision.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Shri Rajesh Agarwal, Managing
Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. The proposal regarding the re-appointment of the aforesaid Director is placed for your approval. The Board of
Directors recommends his re-appointment.

Suitable resolution(s) for appointment / reappointment of Director(s), as referred above, will be placed for approval of the
members in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The brief resume and other information of the concerned director(s),
in terms of the Regulation 26(4) and 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
have been detailed as an annexure in the notice convening the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company,
other than sitting fees, and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/
Committee of the Company.

The Board has recommended to take a consent of the Members by way of Special Resolution in ensuing Annual General
Meeting for continuation of Mr. K. C. Raut, Non-Executive Nominee Director beyond the age of seventy five years. The Board
has also recommended the reappointment of Mr. Rajesh Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company for further term of Five
years from 13t April, 2021 to 31 March, 2026 without any remuneration.

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Act, Mr. Prakash Chhajer has been appointed as Company Secretary of the company w.e.f.
28.05.2019

Key Managerial Personnel

Following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant to Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Act,
read with the Rules framed thereunder:

a. Mr. Rajesh Agarwal, Managing Director;

b. Mr. S. K. Pattanaik, Chief Financial Officer and
c. Mr. Prakash Chhajer, Company Secretary*
*w.e.f. 28.05.2019

23. Declaration given by independent directors under sub-section (6) of section 149;

24,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors have submitted declarations that each of
them meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder and
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status
as independent directors of the Company.

Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.
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Director’s Responsibility Statement:
Pursuant to the section 134 sub-section (3) clause (c) Directors confirm and state that—

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any,

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls and such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively.

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct (hereinafter referred to as ‘Code’) is applicable to all its Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel of the Company. A Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel has already been
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel had affirmed
compliance with the Code during the year and no violation of the same was reported. A declaration to the effect that all Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel have complied with the Code during the financial year 2019-20, duly signed by
Managing Director of the Company is herein below enclosed with Corporate Governance Report. The Code has also been
posted on the Company’s Web-site at arssgroup.in.

Particulars of employees (rule 5(2), and 5(3)) and managerial remuneration ( rule 5(1)) of the companies (appointment and
remuneration of managerial personnel) rules, 2014, and under section 197(12) of the act

The total number of employees as on 31t March, 2020 stood at 331.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1), 5(2)
and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are provided as follows:

(i) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary during the
financial year 2019-20 and ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of
the company for the financial year 2019-20 are as under;

Sr. | Name of the Director/ KMP and designation | Remuneration of | % increase in | Ratio of remuneration
No. Director/ KMP for | remuneration of each Director/ to
the FY 2019-20 (% in the FY | median remuneration

in Lacs) 2019-2020 of employees

1 Mr. Subash Agarwal, Chairman Nil Nil Nil
2 | Mr. Rajesh Agarwal, Managing Director Nil Nil Nil
3 | Mr. S. K. Pattnaik, Chief Financial officer 30.00 Nil Not Applicable
4 | Mr. Prakash Chhajer, Company Secretary 13.75 Nil Not Applicable

(ii) The median remuneration of employees of the company during the financial year was % 1,56,000 ;
(iii) In the Financial year, there was an increase 4.00% in the median remuneration of employees;
(iv) There were 331 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2020;

(v) Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year
i.e. 2019-20 was 8.62% whereas there were no increase in the managerial remuneration for the same financial year.;
and

(vi) Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other Employee.
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Company’s Policy On Directors’ Appointment And Remuneration Including Criteria For Determining Qualifications,
Positive Attributes, Independence Of A Director And Other Matters Provided Under Sub-Section (3) Of Section 178;

The Company’s policy on appointment of directors is available on www.arssgroup.in. The policy on remuneration and other
matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this
report and is also available on www.arssgroup.in

Industrial Relation:

Employee relations continued to be cordial throughout the year. The whole-hearted support of employees and a sense of
belongingness with the organization and solidarity with the management of the Company have helped to cope with the
present challenges of the Company during the year.

Adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements. —

Management has put in place effective Internal Control Systems to provide reasonable assurance for:

e  Safeguarding Assets and their usage.

¢ Maintenance of Proper Accounting Records and

* Adequacy and Reliability of the information used for carrying on Business Operations.

Key elements of the Internal Control Systems has been provided & explained in MDA report attached with Director’s Report.

Annual Evaluation by the Board of Its Own Performance (Including Committees and Individual Directors)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the
Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution and independence
of judgment thereby safeguarding the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors
was carried out by the entire Board. The board also carried out annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit,
Nomination and Remuneration as well as stakeholder relationship committee. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with
the evaluation process.

Segment wise performance:

The Company is engaged in only one segment viz. Construction Business and as such there is no separate reportable
segments as per IND AS -108 “Operating Segment.”

Independent Directors Meeting
During the year under review, the Independent Directors of the Company met on 14" February, 2020, inter-alia, to discuss:
i)  Evaluation of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors of the Company as a whole.

i) Evaluation of performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors.

iii) Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Management and the Board that is
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

Familiarisation Programme of Independent Directors

In compliance with the requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has put in place a familiarization program
for Independent Directors to familiarize them with their role, rights and responsibility as Directors, the operations of the
Company, business overview etc. The details of the familiarization program are explained in the Corporate Governance
Report and the same is also available on the website of the Company.

Details of significant and material orders:

There are no significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and company’s operations in future.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
given in the notes to the Financial Statements.
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Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties Referred To In Sub-Section (1) of Section 188 in the
Prescribed Form AOC-2

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in its
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract
/ arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the
Company on materiality of related party transactions.

The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved by the
Board is put up on the Company’s website and can be accessed at http://arssgroup.in/pdf/ARSS%20POLICY %200N%20
RELATED%20PARTY%20TRANSACTIONS.pdf

All related party transactions are in compliance with Ind-AS 24, Section 188 and / or SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are placed before the Audit Committee as also before the Board for approval. Prior
omnibus approval of the Audit Committee was also sought for transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature.

There were no materially significant related party transactions which could have potential conflict with interest of the Company
at large.

Members may refer Note 61 to the Standalone Financial Statement which sets out related party disclosures pursuant to
Ind-As 24.

The particulars of contracts entered into with related parties during the year as per Form AOC-2 is enclosed as ‘Annexure-E:

Material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company which have occurred between
the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report:

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company between the end of
the financial year and date of this report. There has been no change in the nature of business of the company.

Compounding status

The company has received show cause notices by the office of Regional Director, Eastern Region and Registrar of Companies
of Odisha at Cuttack Pursuant to the inspection held under section 209(A) of The Companies Act, 1956 in the year 2016-17
for the non compliance of few section of the companies act. The company has already compounded 13 sections out of total
thirty eight sections for which show cause notices were issued. Rest are under the process and will be compounded in due
course.

During the year under review, the company has received six (6) show cause notices under various section of the companies
act and all are under process of compounding.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

During the year under review, the Company has taken adequate measures for conservation of energy and also has not gone
for any technology absorption whatsoever in accordance with the provisions of sub - Section (3) (m) section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Company has neither earned any income nor
incurred any expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year ended 31t March, 2020.

Development and Implementation of Risk Management Policy:

The Company has established risk management framework. The Company has been addressing various risks impacting the
Company. In accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on February, 2015 has constituted a Risk Management Committee
and has approved the Risk Management Policy of the company. This Committee has been delegated the authority by the
Board to review and monitor the implementation of the risk management policy of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility
i) Terms of reference:
The Committee formulates CSR Policy. The role of the Committee is as under:

a. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities
to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.
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b. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred in the CSR policy.
c. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company and its implementation from time to time.
d. Such other functions as the Board may deem fit from time to time.

ii) Composition, name of Members and attendance during the year:

The CSR Committee of the Company consists of 2 Non-Executive Independent Directors and 1 Executive Director.

Name of the member Position No. Of No. of meetings
Meetings held during | Attended during the
the FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20
Mr. Rajesh Agarwal Chairman 1 1
Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija Member 1 1
Mr. Pareswar Panda Member 1 1

iii) No. of Meetings held during the year:
During the year the committee has met once i.e. on 28" May, 2019
iv) Amount incurred on CSR activities during the year:

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, (CSR
Rules) makes it mandatory for certain companies who fulfill the criteria as mentioned under Sub Section 1 of Section
135 to comply with the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility and accordingly company had constituted a CSR
committee and has also adopted the CSR Policy for the company as approved by the committee.

Since the average of the last three years profit was in negative figures i.e. (3 27.94) crores loss, company need not to
incur any amount towards CSR in the FY 2019-20.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee

The CSR Committee has confirmed that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR
objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sd/-(Chairman CSR Committee)

Whistle Blower Policy of the Company

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors and employees
in confirmation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of Listing Regulations, to report concerns about unethical
behavior. The details of the policy have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this report
and is also available on www.arssgroup.in. There were no complaints under the whistle blower during the year under review.

Internal Complaint Committee

Company has a well formulated Policy on Prevention & Redress of Sexual Harassment. The objective of the policy is to
prohibit, prevent and address issues of sexual harassment at the workplace. This policy has striven to prescribe a code of
conduct for the employees and all employees have access to the Policy document and are required to strictly abide by it.
The policy covers all employees, irrespective of their nature of employment and also applicable in respect of all allegations
of sexual harassment made by an outsider against an employee. During the year 2019-20, no case of Sexual Harassment
was reported.

Reporting of Frauds:

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Act and Rules framed
there under either to the Company or to the Central Government.
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46. Disclosure requirements:

As per SEBI Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report with the Auditors’ Certificate thereon, and the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report are attached, which forms part of this report. The Company has devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

47. Acknowledgement:

Your Directors would like to acknowledge and place on record their sincere appreciation for assistance and co-operation
received from the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, customers and members during the year under
review. Your Directors also place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the executives,
employees at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: Bhubaneswar (Subash Agarwal)
Dated: 27" August, 2020 Chairman
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Annexure -A

REPORT ON MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

India’s Infrastructure Sector, Industry Structure and Developments:

The Indian economy has been exhibiting lacklustre growth in the face of global volatility amidst weak manufacturing,
muted domestic demand and volatility in oil prices. Real GDP growth has slowed down from 6.1 per cent in fiscal 2018-19
to 4.2 per cent in the backdrop of the slowdown in private consumption, lower tax collections, fund allocation challenges
at the State and Central Government levels, and a sharp slowdown in credit growth. To overcome the slowdown, various
reforms were announced by the Government in FY 2019-20, viz. reduction in corporate tax rates, a scheme to provide
a one-time partial credit guarantee to public sector banks (PSBs) for purchase of pooled assets of financially sound
non-banking financial companies (NBFCs), recapitalization of public sector banks, relaxation of external commercial
borrowing guidelines for affordable housing, setting up of a Realty Fund for stalled housing projects, merger of 10 public
sector banks into four entities and revised Priority Sector Lending (PSL) norms for exports. Private sector investments
continued to be muted in the areas of industrial capex and building infrastructure. Public sector spending, however,
remained firm and was robust in the areas of core infrastructure, driven by the Government’s commitment to boost
investment across multiple infrastructure sectors. The Government also announced the National Infrastructure Pipeline
(NIP) of projects worth R 100+ lakh crore up to FY25, with a focus on energy, roads, railways, urban infrastructure and
irrigation projects to provide a much-needed productivity boost to the Indian economy and fulfil India’s aspiration to
become a USD 5 trillion economy by 2025. The NIP, coupled with other ’pro-business’ policy initiatives, is expected to
lead to a rebound in domestic demand in the medium and long term.

COVID-19 Outbreak

The pandemic and the nationwide lockdown that it triggered has dealt both demand and supply shocks to the economy,
with wide ramifications on revenue collections and economic growth. It is likely to take quite some time for the consequent
stress in the economy to be relieved and for growth to revive. The crisis has prompted the Government to announce a
series of monetary and fiscal relief packages designed to inject liquidity into the system and provide relief to stressed
sectors. While these stimulus measures will provide relief to the affected people and some industries, the slowdown
in economic activity is expected to significantly lower India’s GDP growth in FY 2020-21. Global supply chains have
also been threatened by the pandemic. Governments around the world have been quick to respond to the crisis by
implementing meaningful stimulus measures through a combination of fiscal and monetary easing, increased health
spending and direct support to cover losses in incomes and revenues. Sustained efforts from Governments, focused
on these measures could soften the economic impact of the Coronavirus. Against this backdrop, the Company has
undertaken a series of measures to mitigate the crisis, which includes securing the safety and livelihood of its staff
and subcontracted labour working at project sites, curtailing and reducing overheads at all operating levels, enhancing
liquidity on its Balance Sheet through increased market borrowings and controlling working capital requirements through
a mix of judicious cashflow planning and measured project execution.

Sector Performance in FY 2019-2020

The Infrastructure sector is a key driver for the Indian economy, and contributes to India’s overall development. The
sector, accordingly, receives focused attention and resource allocation from both Central and State Governments.

FY 2019-20 was a challenging year both for the Indian economy, which performed below its true potential, as well as the
construction sector, which recorded a six-year low growth of 1.3%. Cement production saw a marginal decrease of 0.8%
in FY 2019-20 as compared to 13.3% increase in FY 2018-19. India’s crude steel production was down by 1.5 percent
and finished steel production was flat at 109.2 MT in FY 2019-20 against 110.9 MT in FY 2018-19.

Despite the challenges, the Government’s thrust areas continued to provide a business opportunity basket for the
Company, which was in the pole position to capitalize on the business prospects that came to fruition during the year.
The continuing weakness in the Realty sector was countered with a Government focused boost to the affordable mass
housing and health segments. With the Government’s focus on improving air-connectivity, opportunities in the airport
segment continue to arise at periodic intervals.

The construction of highways slowed to 28 km a day during FY 2019-20, from 29.7 km a day achieved in FY 2018-19.
The Ministry of Road Transport & Highways is hopeful of increasing it to 32 km a day in FY 2020-21. Competition in this
sector has increased with a higher frequency of smaller-sized bids attracting interest from smaller players. This sector is
also beset with challenging payment terms in Government tenders coupled with slow progress in land acquisition.
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With a discernable thrust on renewable energy, the award of some contracts in this area has been gaining momentum,
which has offset the tapering of prospects on centrally sponsored intensive electrification projects under the ‘Saubhagya’
initiatives. As on March 31, 2020, over 26 million households have been provided with electricity connections under the
Scheme.

The Government’s emphasis on augmenting local water resources launched under the Jal Jeevan Mission is also giving
rise to good prospects. Under the National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP), roads, urban and housing, railways, power
(renewable and conventional) and irrigation comprise ~80% of the total plan. This investment and initiative from the
Government will create a good opportunity for the infrastructure sector in the coming years.

Public sector spending on the Infrastructure sector, as a whole, continues to witness focused attention through a
combination of Central, State Government and PSU capex. The combined Budgetary Capex spends (including PSU
Capex) amount to over ¥ 16 lakh crore for FY 2020-21, which translates to over 7% of expected nominal GDP. The
COVID-19 crisis is likely to adversely affect revenue collections and GDP growth in FY 2020-21, which in turn could lead
to contraction of spends on Infrastructure. The Central and State Governments are attempting to mitigate the impact of
lower tax collections through significantly higher market borrowings than originally budgeted for the year FY 2020-21,
and the increase could be in the region of R 9 lakh crore. Multi-lateral funding of projects, which has increased in recent
years, is providing additional resources for building infrastructure within the country.

The Infrastructure business, which faces normal execution challenges in terms of ‘Right of Way’ and delayed client
clearances, encountered some unprecedented issues in FY 2019-20. Change in some State Governments, led to
reassessment of awarded contracts, while some environmental-related work stoppages adversely affected work progress
in some projects. The impact of these challenges was accentuated with the onset of the pandemic in the last fortnight of
the financial year, which slowed down the economy, with the lockdown being implemented by various Governments. The
pandemic has affected execution in the last quarter of the year, which otherwise is the busiest quarter for the segment
in terms of progress and collections. This has had an impact on both revenues and profits, since the sites had to be shut
temporarily.

With the changing environment, the project sites are also required to adapt to a new set of norms for continuation of
work, which will hamper progress for some time. The impact of the pandemic is expected to continue into the next
financial year, and may taper off as normalcy gradually returns.

Infrastructure and Construction Services
Introduction

Infrastructure sector is a key driver for the Indian economy. The sector is highly responsible for propelling India’s overall
development and enjoys intense focus from Government for initiating policies that would ensure time-bound creation
of world class infrastructure in the country. Infrastructure sector includes power, bridges, dams, roads, and urban
infrastructure development. India was ranked 44 out of 167 countries in World Bank’s Logistics Performance Index (LPI)
2018. India ranked second in the 2019 Agility Emerging Markets Logistics Index.

Market Size

Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in Construction Development sector (townships, housing, built up infrastructure and
construction development projects) stood at US$ 25.66 billion during April 2000 to March 2020, according to Department
for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT). The logistics sector in India is growing at a CAGR of 10.5 per cent
annually and is expected to reach US$ 215 billion in 2020.

Investments

India requires investment worth Z 50 trillion (US$ 777.73 billion) in infrastructure by 2022 to have sustainable development
in the country. India is witnessing significant interest from international investors in the infrastructure space. Some of the
key investments made in the sector are listed below:

e Large investment in infrastructure has seen momentum as overall PE (private equity)/VC (venture capital)
investment touched an all-time high of US$ 14.5 billion in 2019.

¢ In FY20, the cumulative growth of eight core industries stood at 0.6 per cent.
e Ason 31 March, 26.02 million households got electricity connection under the Saubhagya Scheme.

¢ In 2019, infrastructure sector witnessed seven merger and acquisition (M&A) deals worth US$ 1,461 million.

22
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Government Initiatives

The Government of India is expected to invest highly in the infrastructure sector, mainly highways, renewable energy,
and urban transport.

¢ In April 2020, the Government set a target of constructing roads worth ¥ 15 lakh crore (US$ 212.80 billion) in the
next two years.

e In May 2020, Border Roads Organisation (BRO) achieved major milestone by digging up a 440-metre long tunnel
below the busy Chamba town on Rishikesh-Dharasu road Highway (NH 94).

¢ Indian energy sector is expected to offer investment opportunities worth US$ 300 billion over the next 10 years.

¢ NHAI will be able to generate revenue of % one lakh crore (US$ 14.31 billion) from toll and wayside amenities over
the next five years.

* In the Union Budget 2020-21, the Government has given a massive push to the infrastructure sector by allocating
¥ 1,69,637 crore (US$ 24.27 billion) to develop the transport infrastructure.

e communication sector has been allocated 3 38,637.46 crore (US$ 5.36 billion) to develop post and telecommunications
departments.

e Indian Railways has received an allocation of ¥ 72,216 crore (US$ 10.33 billion) under Union Budget 2020-21.
Opportunities and Threats, Risks and concerns

Achievements

Following are the achievements of the Government in the past four years:

¢ In 2019, the sector witnessed seven merger and acquisition (M&A) deals worth US$ 1,461 million.

* In March 2020, NHAI accomplished the highest ever highway construction of 3,979 km of national highways in
FY20.

e Freight earnings in FY20 (till February 2020) stood at ¥ 119,216.11 crore (US$ 17.06 billion), while its gross revenue
stood at ¥ 183,092.74 crore (US$ 26.20 billion) during the same period.

e Cargo traffic handled stood at 707.4 million tonnes (MT) in FY20.
e Electricity production in India reached 1,252.61 BU in FY20.

e The largest PE investment witnessed was the acquisition of Pipeline Infrastructure India by Canadian asset
management firm Brookfield’s for US$ 1.9 billion in Q12019.

e India’s rank jumped to 22 in 2019 from 137 in 2014 on World Bank’s Ease of doing business - “Getting Electricity
ranking.

e Energy deficit reduced to 0.7 per cent in FY20 from 4.2 per cent in FY14.
Road Ahead

The infrastructure sector has become the biggest focus area for the Government of India. India plans to spend US$
1.4 trillion on infrastructure during 2019-23 to have a sustainable development of the country. The Government has
suggested investment of ¥ 5,000,000 crore (US$ 750 billion) for railways infrastructure between 2018-2030.

India and Japan have joined hands for infrastructure development in India’s Northeast states and are also setting up
an India-Japan Coordination Forum for Development of Northeast to undertake strategic infrastructure projects for the
region.

Risk and Concerns

The housing and real estate business is increasingly witnessing the political risks of Government decisions being
reversed and projects halted due to changes in regime in the States. A robust political risk index is conceived and being

developed to effectively identify and mitigate the same at the bidding stage. In the case of a few projects, specifically
Government projects, hand-over of encumbrance-free sites on time, remains a key issue that halts the project’s
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momentum. In jobs executed on a design-and-build contract basis, frequent changes in design by the client and
client-appointed consultants are a huge concern. Though in-house Engineering, Design & Research Centre (EDRC)
is proactive and is improving continuously by documenting and implementing the learning from previous experiences
in new jobs, unexpected changes suggested by clients hinder timely completion of jobs. Such changes are thoroughly
documented and communicated to clients by the Contracts Administration team to pursue claims. The strategy of the
business to develop a specialized vertical — B&F Fast — to modularize, standardize and focus on ‘prefab plus assembly’
building solutions for different types of buildings is a step towards mitigating the growing risk of the non-availability of
skilled manpower in the industry. The solution will also cater to the increasing need of customers for quicker construction.
Presently, the world economy is facing a downturn triggered by the COVID-19 pandemic, which has spread to almost
all the countries across the globe. The Infrastructure industry is among one of the badly affected industries due to the
contagion-led lockdown and eventual new norms of working. It has also impacted the supply chain and the availability
of the workforce. The business is working on identifying different scenarios and preparing contingency plans for each
scenario. All necessary measures are being taken to ensure the collection of payments due and to have a hard look at
fixed costs and optimize overheads during the lockdown period.

Outlook

Currently the economy is opening up with restrictions on construction activities completely lifted. The lockdown has led
to a reduction in consumption demand in the country, leaving government spending in social sectors as the key driver
of economic growth. The opportunities for the business in the upcoming year will be majorly from Healthcare industry,
as increased government spending is expected in this segment. Also, there is a negative sentiment about China and
many countries currently are looking to move out of China which was their manufacturing base. This is expected to
trigger opportunities for the factories segment in B&F as most companies are likely to set up their manufacturing
establishments in India. However, the commercial and residential real estate business in the country will witness a
prolonged impact of the pandemic. The investments into the development of Airport construction may slow down and
are expected to rebound only during the latter part of FY 21. The major challenge for the construction industry will be
supply chain disruptions including limited availability of labourers as the migrant workers constituted a very large share
of the workforce. The business has already initiated the implementation of long-term solutions to face such challenges
like reducing the dependency on human resources by leveraging advanced construction technology. Also, the business
is considering implementation of techniques like Zero Based Budgeting for cutting down unnecessary expenses and
optimizing resource utilization. The business is confident of its ability to tide over the challenges arising from subdued
demand and executional challenges through its customer- centric approach, construction expertise and technology
leadership in the industry.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AT ARSS
The Company (alongwith it’s JVs) has secured the following contracts (work order) during the financial year 2019-20:

a. At-— Rourkela - Jharsuguda 3" line work - Supply & Spreading of track Ballast in between Sogra and Jharsuguda
under the jurisdiction of Dy.Chief Engineer (Con)/Jharsuguda, South Eastern Railway is awarded in favour of our
Company i.e. ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited by Chief Engineer (Con) - Il, South Eastern Railway, Garden
Reach, Kolkata — 700 043, on 24" May, 2019 with a contract value ¥ 9.42 crores.

b. At Sonepur : Construction of Bridge No-677(17x45.70m-Open web through girder) on Tel river & Major Bridge No
675 (1x30.50m Open web through girder) over SH-41 between Km 237.200 to 238.400 of Khurda Road-Bolangir
New B.G Rail link Project is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-SNKI (JV), Plot-38
Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Chief Engineer/Con/HQ,
Bhubaneswar-23, 10* June, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 27.55 crores.

c. At: Sukinda, Package- 2 - “Track Linking (Excluding Supply of Rails, Sleepers, Thick Web Switches), S&T and
OHE Works between Km.47 to Km.97 in connection with construction of Angul-Sukinda New BG Rail Link of
58.961 Track Km (Between Rangamatia to Baghuapal including Tie Lines at Tomka) on Khurda Road Division
of East Coast Railway, in Odisha State, India” is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS
-THAKUR JV (ARSS: 80%, Thakur: 20%), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-
751010,0disha. by the Chief Project Manager/Ill, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Bhubaneswar, 1%t July, 2019 with a
contract value of ¥ 195.42 crores.

d. At Sambalpur: Construction of Earthwork, Bridge Work, Protection Work of minor and major bridge, slope of bank,
Buildings, site facilities, General Electrical works and other miscellaneous work in section Deobhal (IN) — Barpali
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(IN) in connection with the doubling of Sambalpur —Titlagarh in Sambalpur division of East Coast Railway is awarded
in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial
Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Chief Project Manager/I, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, (Sambalpur -
Titlagarh Doubling project),VISAKHAPAATNAM, on 18" July, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 77.96 crores.

At Azamgarh : Package- A1 - “Construction of roadbed and Minor Bridge, ETC works in connection with Doubling
between Mau (MAU) (Excluding) 0.00 Km and Azamgarh (AMH) (Including) Km 43.50 (Total 43.50 Km) in Varanasi
Division of North Eastern Railway, Uttar Pradesh, India” is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named
ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by
the Chief Project Manager-1l, 3rdFloor, Royal Pavillion, (Near Bajaj Sewashram), Modhaila to Manduadih Road,
Varanasi (UP), India, on 9" October, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 97.25 crores.

At Azamgarh: Package - B1 - “Construction of roadbed, Major and Minor Bridge, ETC works in connection with
Doubling between Azamgarh (AMH) (Excluding) 43.50 Km and Shahganj (SHG) (Including) 99.75 (Total 56.25
Km) in Varanasi Division of North Eastern Railway, Uttar Pradesh, India” is awarded in favour one of our Joint
Venture (JV) named ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-
751010,0disha. by the Chief Project Manager-II, 3rdFloor, Royal Pavillion, (Near Bajaj Sewashram), Modhaila to
Manduadih Road, Varanasi (UP), India, on 9" October, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 123.40 crores.

At Rayagada: Package-5A- “Construction of two numbers of Major Bridge No. 611 (Span 8 X 30.5 m CG) at Km
344.87 in Rayagada — Ladda section and Major bridge No. 624 (Span 2 X 18.30 m CG + 1X12.20 m CG) at KM
352.03 in Ladda - Jimmidipeta section and other Bridge works in connection with 3 line between Rayagada
(Excl) (KM 343.90) — Jimidipeta (Excl) (KM 356.518) on Waltair Division of East Coast Railway in Odisha State,
India” is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-ROYAL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D,
Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Chief Project Manager/Il, Rail Vikas Nigam
Limited, Vishakapatnam — 530004 (AP), India, on 15" October, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 60.57 crores.

At Rayagada: Package-5A-"Construction of Roadbed, Minor Bridges, Service Buildings including amenities,
Passenger amenities at stations and related works along with General Electrical works in connection with 3™
Line between Rayagada (Excl) (KM 343.90) - Jimidipeta (Excl) (KM 356.518) on Waltair Division of East Coast
Railway in Odisha State, India, is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-
38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Chief Project Manager/Il,
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited,(Vizianagaram — Titlagarh 3" Line Project), Vishakapatnam, India, on 15" October, 2019
with a contract value of ¥ 50.46 crores.

At Paradip: Construction of handling platforms, Railway track, truck parking area, buildings and other ancillary
facilities for IFFCO at MMLP Paradip, Odisha, is awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-
BDPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha. by the Group
General Manager (EC), CONTAINER CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD., C-3 Mathura Road, Opposite Apollo
Hospital, New Delhi — 110 076, on 17" October, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 76.15 crores.

At — Jagdalpur - Repair and restoration of Plant Road Network at NISP is awarded in favour of our Company i.e.
ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited by Executive Director (NISP), NMDC Iron & Steel Plant, Nagarnar, Jagdalpur,
CG, on 18" October, 2019 with a contract value ¥ 19.33 Lacs.

At — Kendrapara - Construction of H.L.Bridge over river Gobari at Ch.0/250 Km and road from 0/000 Km to 0/700
Km for construction of alternative road to Kendrapara Town under State Plan, is awarded in favour of our Company
i.e. ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited by Executive Engineer, Kendrapara (R&B) Division, Kendrapara, on 25"
October, 2019 with a contract value ¥ 10.52 crores.

At Titlagarh : Construction of Earth Work, Major and Minor Bridges, Protection work of minor and major bridge,
slope of bank, Buildings, PF Shelter FOB, Platform and passenger amenities, site facilities, General Electrical works
and other miscellaneous work in section Budmal (IN) - Titlagarh (IN) (19.71 Kms) in connection with the doubling
of Sambalpur-Titlagarh in Sambalpur division of East Coast Railway in the State of Odisha, India, is awarded in
favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-SCPL (JV), Plot-38 Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial
Estate Bhubaneswar-751010,0disha3 by the Chief Project Manager/I, Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Vishakhapatnam
— 530004 (AP), on 12" November, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 75.42 crores.

At — Sonepur - Construction of Portal Frame Bridge & Road from 2/385 to 3/585 Km of Ring road at Sonepur in
the district of Subarnpur under Deposit Scheme., is awarded in favour of our Company i.e. ARSS Infrastructure
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Projects Limited by Chief Engineer, D.P.| & Roads (E.E. Sonepur), on 18" November, 2019 with a contract value
45.80 crores.

n. At Nirjuli: Construction of 2-lane road of Potin to Pangin section of NH-13 from Km 0.00 to Km 44.35 (Package-1)
in the State of Arunachal Pradesh under Arunachal Pradesh Package of Roads and Highways of SARDP-NE, is
awarded in favour one of our Joint Venture (JV) named ARSS-NTLLP (JV), Nirjuli Short-Cut P.O.-Nirjuli, District
Papunpare Arunachal Pradesh 791109. by the Chief Engineer (Zone-V), MoRTH, New Delhi — 110 001, on 26"
November, 2019 with a contract value of ¥ 281.11 crores

0. At-—Tangaria- Construction of ROB at Ch-62291 between Tangaria to Bhuban RCC Box Bridge No. 125 (2x7.5x7.563)
under Angul-Sukinda New BG Rail Link Project on Khurda Road Division, East Coast Railway in Odisha State,
India, is awarded in favour of our Company i.e. ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited by Chief Project Manager-Il,
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited, Bhubaneswar, on 28" November, 2019 with a contract value ¥ 12.42 crores.

p. At - Sambalpur - Execution of P-Way Linking works (excluding supply of rail, ordinary track sleeper & thick web
switches) including yard remodeling and other miscellaneous works like widening and extension of Platforms, FOB,
Goods Platforms, Passenger amenities, Earth work, S&T works, General Electrical works and OHE/RE works in
section Deobahal(IN)-Barpali(IN) in connection with the doubling of Sambalpur-Titlagarh in Sambalpur division
of East Coast Railway, is awarded in favour of our Company i.e. ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited by CPM-,
RVNL, (Sambalpur — Titlagarh Doubling Project), North Block 2" floor, Jeevan Samrudhi LIC Building, Thikkana
Road, Vishakhapatnam — 530004 (AP), on 17" February, 2020 with a contract value ¥ 130.09 crores.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

Management has put in place effective Internal Control Systems to provide reasonable assurance for:
e  Safeguarding Assets and their usage.

* Maintenance of Proper Accounting Records and

*  Adequacy and Reliability of the information used for carrying on Business Operations.

Key elements of the Internal Control Systems are as follows:

e Existence of Authority Manuals and periodical updating of the same for all Functions.

* Existence of clearly defined organizational structure and authority.

e  Existence of corporate policies for Financial Reporting and Accounting.

e Existence of Management information system updated from time to time as may be required.
e  Existence of Long Term Business Plans.

e  Existence of Internal Audit System.

e Periodical review of opportunities and risk factors depending on the Global / Domestic Scenario and to undertake
measures as may be necessary.

The Company has appointed an Independent Auditor to ensure compliance and effectiveness of the Internal Control Systems
in place. The Audit Committee is regularly reviewing the Internal Audit Reports for the auditing carried out in all the key areas
of the operations. Additionally the Audit Committee approves all the audit plans and reports for significant issues raised by
the Internal and External Auditors. Regular reports on the business development, future plans and projections are given to
the Board of Directors. Audit Reports are regularly circulated for perusal of Senior Management for appropriate action as
required. Normal foreseeable risks of the Company’s assets are adequately covered by comprehensive insurance. Risk
assessments, inspections and safety audits are carried out periodically.
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Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance
The performance during the year ended 31t March, 2020 has been as under:

(% In Crores)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19
Sales 288.51 459.10 288.52 459.10
Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax 35.14 32.72 36.22 32.12
Less : Depreciation 20.82 22.02 20.82 22.02
Interest 4.44 2753 4.44 2753
Share of net profit or associates and joint ventures - - 106.99 (0.60)
accounted using equity method
Profit Before Tax 9.88 (16.83) 10.95 (17.43)

Less : Tax Expenses

a) Current Year - - - -

b) Earlier Year - - - -

c) Deferred Tax 1.89 5.62 1.89 5.62
Profit/Loss After Tax 7.99 (11.21) 9.06 (11.81)
Balance brought forward from previous year (198.43) (187.27) (209.04) (197.28)
Add :Re-measurement of defined employee benefit 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
plans through OCI
Amount Available for Appropriation (190.39) (198.43) (199.93) (209.04)
Appropriations

a) Dividend - - - -

b) Tax on Dividend - - - -
c) Transfer to General Reserve - - - R

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (190.39) (198.43) (199.93) (209.04)
Earnings per Share (In %) (Weighted) Basic 3.54 (4.93) 4.01 (5.20)
(Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each)

Earnings per Share (In %) (Weighted) Diluted 3.54 (4.93) 4.01 (5.20)

(Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each)

Human Resources Development and Industrial Relations:

In 2019-20, with ARSS growing its order book, resource mobilisation for new projects became a key HR imperative. With the
growing number of projects, hiring was also done at the leadership levels in the areas of operations, engineering and design
to strengthen the quality of project execution. New talent was also inducted at the middle and junior levels. While adequate
number of people were hired for effective execution, there were strong budget controls imposed to effectively balance the
twin objectives of growth and cost control.

New employee induction and training for the existing employees continued to remain focused on functional, technical and
behavioral areas. Safety related training also remained an important area of intervention. With new projects getting awarded
and many project managers being new to the ARSS system, an exhaustive induction program covering all functions and
processes was developed and implemented. However, the objective of furthering operational efficiencies remained a
common thread through these activities. The Company is actively working on developing a culture driven by the collective
spirit of experience. Assignment, empowerment and accountability will be the cornerstone of the people led processes.

Since 2019-20 was a year of consolidation, the remuneration and benefits mostly remained unaltered. However, ground work
started on rationalising the compensation structure to make it more employees friendly and with a plan to implement the
same in coming financial year. Safety related training also remained as one of the primary focus areas. In the area of Project
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Management, self and immediate superior's assessments were completed with an objective to roll out appropriate training
programmes for the next financial year with special focus on project risk assessment and mitigation.

Labor relations at all work sites and at the headquarters of the Company continued to remain cordial throughout the year.
There was no industrial dispute during the year under review.

Business Performance :

The turnover of the Company in the year is ¥ 288.51 cr. as compared to ¥ 459.10 crores in the previous financial year. The
profit before tax is ¥ 9.88 crores as compared to % (16.83) crores for the previous financial year.

Key Financial Ratio : Pursuant to Schedule V(B) to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015], the details of changes in key financial ratio as compared to previous year are
stated below:

2019-20 2018-19 % change as

compared to PY

Debtors Turnover 20.79 6.20 235.32%
Inventory Turnover 3.61 6.85 -47.30%
Interest Coverage Ratio 3.22 0.39 725.64%
Current ratio 0.18 0.21 -14.29%
Debt Equity Ratio 0.029 0.15 -80.67%
Operating profit Margin (%) 4.96% 2.33% 112.88%
Net Profit Margin (%) 2.88% (2.43)% -218.52%
Return on Net worth 4.89 (1116.01) -100.44%

1. Debtors turnover ratio- decreased primarily account of decrease in receivables due to revenue booking in the last
month of the FY i.e. March 2020. Further there is decrease in turnover as compared to previous year.

2. Inventory turnover ratio —decreased primarily on account of increase in inventory. Further there is decrease in turnover
as compared to previous year.

Interest coverage ratio-improved primarily on account of higher operating profits and lower interest.

Current ratio-decreased primarily on account of increase in short term borrowings.

Debt equity ratio- improved primarily on account of movement of long term borrowing to short term borrowing.
Operating profit margin — increased on account of higher operating profit and effective cost management.

Net profit margin- increased on account of higher operating profit and effective cost management

® N @ o s

Return on net worth- improved primarily on account of adding profit to reserve as compared to previous year.
Strategic Initiative:

The Company is well on its course to meet its growth targets despite increase competition. Effective business strategies have
allowed the Company executing projects in a timely manner and economies on critical resources though joint venture in large
projects.

The foray into high potential business of railways, roads and bridges has been successful during the year and boosted
the order in flow. The Company is strengthening its manpower for execution of high value projects and adding assets for
development of infrastructures to complete all contracts in time.

Internal Controls and their Adequacy

ARSS has an adequate system of internal control to ensure that the resources of the Company are used efficiently and
effectively, all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition and the transactions
are authorised, recorded and reported correctly, financial and other data are reliable for preparing financial information and
other data and for maintaining accountability of assets. The internal control is supplemented by extensive programme of
internal audits, review by management, documented policies, guidelines and procedures.
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9. Cautionary Statement:
Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might
differ substantially or materially from those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect the Company’s
operations include a downtrend in the infrastructure sector, significant changes in political and economic environment in
India, exchange rate fluctuations, tax laws, litigation, labour relations and interest costs.
Sd/-
Place: Bhubaneswar (Subash Agarwal)
Dated: 27" August, 2020 Chairman
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Annexure -B

Report on Corporate Governance
Company’s Philosophy on code of Corporate Governance

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited (‘the Company’ or ARSS’) has always been committed to maintain sound corporate
governance standards and ethical business practices.

This involves institutionalizing the Company’s philosophy on corporate governance across business activities, which is
based on the principles of accountability, transparency, responsibility and fairness in all aspects of its operations.

The Company has an active and Independent Board of Directors that provides supervisory, strategic advice and direction.
Your Company believes that all actions and plans should be supported by adequate systems and procedures in order to
ensure that the decision making process across different levels of management is well-informed and conforms to the highest
standards of corporate behaviour.

This Chapter reports the Company’s compliance with the Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as SEBI Listing Regulations) as given below:

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has an ideal combination of executive and non executive Directors and is in conformity with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations which inter alia stipulates that the
Board should have an optimum combination of Executive and Non-executive Directors with at least one Woman Director and
not less than fifty percent of the Board should consist of Independent Directors, if the Chairman of the Board is an Executive
Director.

(i) The Company had 6 Directors (as on 31.03.2020) of which 2 are Executive Directors, 1 is Nominee Director and 3
are Non-Executive & Independent Directors. Out of 3 Non-Executive & Independent Directors there is one Woman
Independent Director.

(i) None of the Directors on the Board are Members of more than ten Committees or Chairman of more than five Committees
(as specified in Regulation 26 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations) across all the Companies in which they are Directors.
Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public Companies as on March 31, 2020 have been
made by the Directors. None of the directors of the Company holds office as a director, including as an alternate director,
in more than twenty companies at the same time. None of them has directorships in more than ten public limited
companies and none of the NEDs serve as IDs in more than Seven Listed Companies and none of the Executive or
whole- time Directors serve as IDs on any listed company.

(i) The Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Non-Executive Directors during FY 2020. The
Independent Directors are not related to promoters or persons occupying management positions at the Board level
or any level below the Board; they were neither in employment for the last three years nor they are material suppliers,
service providers, customers, a lessor, or a lessee of the Company, which may affect their independence. They do not
hold substantial shares in the Company. All these directors are above 21 years of age.

(iv) All Independent Directors are persons of eminence and bring a wide range of expertise and experience to the Board
thereby ensuring the best interest of stakeholders and the Company. Independent directors are non executive directors
as defined under Reg 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Regulation), 2015. All Independent Directors meet with the criteria of
independence as prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”). Maximum Tenure of Independent directors is in compliance with
the Act.

(v) The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year and
the number of Directorship and Committee Chairmanships/ Memberships held by them in other Companies are given
herein below. Chairmanships/ Memberships of the Board Committees include only Audit committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee.

(vi) The Information stipulated under Part A of Schedule Il of SEBI (LODR Regulations) is being made available to the
Board.
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(vii) None of the present directors except Mr. Subash Agarwal & Mr. Rajesh Agarwal are “Relative” of each other as defined
in Section 2 (77) of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the companies (Specification of definitions details) Rule 2014.

Details Regarding Appointment and Re- appointment of all the Board of Directors has been detailed in the Director’s Report.

The details of composition of the Board, Directors’ attendance at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”), Directors’ outside directorships and the Board / Committee Chairmanships / Memberships as on
31st March, 2020 are given hereunder:

Name Category Board Meetings Attendance No. of Directorship and other committee No. of shares
Held During | Atiended at Last AGM Membership/Chairmanship held in the
the tenureg Directorship* | Committee | Chairmanship# | company as on

membership# 31.03.2020

Mr. Subash Agarwal Executive Director 4 4 Yes 3 Nil Nil 13,81,608

(Chairman)

Mr. Rajesh Agarwal Executive Director 4 3 Yes 4 Nil Nil 5,38,745

(Managing Director)

Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija Independent Director 4 4 No 2 4 3 Nil

Mr. Krishna Chandra Raut Nominee Director 4 4 No 2 2 Nil Nil

Mr. Pareswar Panda Independent Director 4 4 Yes 1 Nil Nil Nil

Mrs. Janhabi Deo Independent Woman Director 4 4 Yes 1 2 2 Nil

Notes:-

* Directorship includes only Indian Public Companies Whether Listed or not including ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited
has been considered and Excludes private limited companies, foreign companies and companies registered under Section
8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (i.e. associations not carrying on business for profit or which prohibits payment of dividend).

# In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Memberships/Chairmanships of only Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee in all public limited companies
Whether Listed or not, including ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited have been considered.

**Mr. S.C. Parija was Chairman of Audit Committee and SRC Committee till 8" November, 2019 after that Mrs. Janhabi Deo
was elected as Chairperson of such committee.

(viii) None of the Directors hold the office of director in more than the permissible number of companies under the Companies
Act, 2013 or Regulation 17A of the SEBI LODR Regulations.

The names of the listed entities (whose equities and debt securities are listed) wherein the Director holds directorships
as on 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Name of Director

Names of Listed Entities where he
holds Directorship

Category of Directorship

Mr. Subash Agarwal
(Chairman)

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited

Chairman

Mr. Rajesh Agarwal
(Managing Director)

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited

Managing Director

Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited

Independent Director

Filatex India Limited

Independent Director

Mr. Krishna Chandra Raut

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited

Nominee Director

Balasore Alloys Limited

Nominee Director

Mr. Pareswar Panda

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited

Independent Director

Mrs. Janhabi Deo

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited

Independent Woman Director

(ix) Information to the Board: The Board of Directors has complete access to the information within the Company, which inter

alia includes -

» Annual revenue budgets and capital expenditure plans;

» Quarterly results and results of operations of the company ;
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(x)

Financing plans of the Company;

Minutes of meeting of Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

» Details of any joint venture, acquisitions of companies or collaboration agreement or sale of investments,
subsidiaries, assets Quarterly report on fatal or serious accidents or dangerous occurrences, any material effluent
or pollution problems;

»  Any materially relevant default, if any, in financial obligations to and by the Company or substantial non-payment for
goods sold or services rendered, if any;

» Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including any Judgment
or Order, if any, which may have strictures on the conduct of the Company;

Developments in respect of human resources/industrial relations;

»  Compliance or Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing requirements and investor service
such as non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer, etc., if any;

» Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit the risks of adverse
exchange rate movement, if material;

» Status and effectiveness of risk management plans;
Succession to senior management (through the Nomination & Compensation Committee);

» Show cause / demand / prosecution / adjudication notices, if any, from revenue authorities which are considered
materially important ;

»  Significant court judgement or order passing strictures, if any, on the conduct of the Company or a subsidiary of the
Company or any employee, which could negatively impact the Company’s image. ;

Write-offs / disposals (fixed assets, inventories, receivables, advances etc.) on a half-yearly basis;
Significant development in Human Resources / Industrial Relations;

Material non-compliance of any regulatory or listing requirements and in relation to shareholders’ services;

YV V V V

All other matters required to be placed before the Board for its review / information under the Listing Regulations
2015 and other statutes.

No. of Board Meetings

Four Board Meetings were held during the year and the time gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The
dates on which the Board Meetings were held are as follows:

28" May, 2019, 12" August, 2019, 14" November, 2019 and 14" February, 2020.

Further, the Board Meetings for approval of quarterly and annual financial results were held on the following dates:

1st Quarter Results : 121 August, 2019
2" Quarter Results : 14" November, 2019
34 Quarter Results : 14" February, 2020
4" Quarter & Annual Results : 27" August, 2020

The tentative dates of the Board Meetings for consideration of financial results for the year ending 31t March, 2021 are
as follows:

18t Quarter Results : Up to 15" September, 2020
2n Quarter Results : Up to 14" November, 2020
3" Quarter Results : Up to 14" February, 2021
4t Quarter & Annual Results : Up to 30" May, 2021
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(xi) Board Procedure

The Board ensures that the Company’s reporting and disclosure practices meet the highest standards of Corporate
Governance and that the business practices followed by the Company are oriented towards meeting obligations towards
various stakeholders and enhancing shareholders value. The Agenda of the meeting is circulated well in advance to
the Board members backed by comprehensive background information to enable them to take appropriate decisions.
During the year, information as information to be placed before board of directors under SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements), Regulation, 2015, [Reg. 17(7)] has been placed before the Board for its consideration. The
Board is also kept informed of major events / items and approvals taken wherever necessary. The Managing Director at
the Board Meetings keep the Board apprised of the overall performance of the Company.

Further, the Board also reviews the Annual financial statements of the Unlisted Subsidiary Company. Pursuant to
Regulation 24 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Minutes of the Board Meetings and a statement of all significant
transactions and arrangements entered into by the Company’s Unlisted Subsidiary Company is placed before the
Board. The Company has also formulated a Policy for determining “Material Subsidiaries” which is available on the
website of the Company.

(xii) Code of Conduct for Board members and Senior Management

The Board of Directors has laid down the code of conduct for all the Board members and members of the Senior
Management of the Company. Additionally all independent directors of the company shall be bound by duties of
independent directors as set out in the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedules and Rules there-under. All the
Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct.

The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the company.

(xiii) Formulation of Policy for Selection and Appointment of Directors and Their Remuneration

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussed and thereafter decided upon the policy for selection of
appointment of directors and their remuneration. The highlights of this policy are as follows:

A. Criteria of selection of Non Executive Directors.

a) The Non Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience so as to have a
diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of manufacturing, marketing, finance, taxation, law,
governance and general management.

b) Incase of appointment of Independent Directors, the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to the independent
nature of the Directors vis-a-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to discharge its function and duties
effectively.

c) The Committee shall ensure that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not disqualified for
appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d) The Committee shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board the
candidature for appointment as Director.

e Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields;
* Personal, Professional or business standing;
¢ Diversity of the Board.

¢ In case of re-appointment of Non Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the
performance evaluation of the Director and his engagement level.

B. Remuneration to Non Executive Directors

The Non Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for participation in the
Board / Committee meetings and commission as detailed hereunder:

a) A Non Executive Director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or Committee
meeting attended by him/her at his/her discretion of such sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors
within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014;
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(xiv)

b) The Committee may recommend to the Board, the payment of commission on uniform basis, to reinforce the
principles of collective responsibility of the Board.

c) The payment of such commission would be at the discretion of board only and shall not exceed 1% of the net
profit of the Company;

d) The Independent Directors of the Company shall not be entitled to participate in the Stock Option Scheme of
the Company, if any, introduced by the Company

Chairman/ Managing Director & Whole Time Director - Criteria for selection / appointment

For the purpose of selection of the Managing Director or Whole Time Director, the Committee shall identify persons
of integrity who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and shall
take into consideration recommendation, if any, received from any member of the Board. The Committee will also
ensure that the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other qualifications as laid down under
the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws.

Remuneration for the Chairman/ Managing Director or Whole Time Director

a) Atthetime of appointment or re-appointment, the Chairman, Managing Director or Whole Time Director may be
paid such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Companies (which includes the nomination
& Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors) and the Chairman, Managing Director or Whole Time
Director within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

b) The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General Meeting.

¢) The remuneration of the Chairman, Managing Director or Whole Time Director may be broadly divided into
fixed and variable components. The fixed component shall comprise salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities
and retrial benefits. The variable component shall comprise performance bonus.

d) In determining the remuneration (including the fixed increment and performance bonus) the Committee shall
ensure / consider the following:

¢ the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmarks is clear;

* balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives, appropriate
to the working of the Company and its goals;

¢ Responsibility required to be shouldered by the Managing Director or Whole Time Director, the industry
benchmarks and the current trends.

Remuneration Policy for the Senior Management Employees

In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees (i.e. KMPs and senior officers just below
the board level) the Committee shall ensure / consider the following:

e the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear;

e the balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives, appropriate
to the working of the Company and its goals;

e the remuneration is divided into two components viz. fixed component comprising salaries, perquisites and
retirement benefits and a variable component comprising performance bonus;

e The remuneration including annual increment and performance bonus is decided based on the criticality of the
roles and responsibilities, the Company’s performance vis-a-vis the annual budget achievement, individuals’
performance and current compensation trends in the market.

The Chairman, Managing Director or Whole Time Director will carry out the individual performance review based on
the standard appraisal matrix and shall take into account the appraisal score card and other factors and thereafter
shall recommend the annual increment and performance incentive to the Committee for its review and approval.
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(xv)

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a separate exercise
was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board who were
evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby
safeguarding the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried
out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was
carried out by the Independent Directors. The board also carried out annual performance evaluation of the working
of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration as well as stakeholder relationship committee. The Directors expressed
their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Independent Directors :

The

Company has complied with the definition of Independence as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and according to

the Provisions of section 149(6) Companies Act, 2013. The company has also obtained declarations from all the Independent
Directors pursuant to section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The
Act,

company issued formal letters of appointment to Independent Directors in the manner as provided in the Companies
2013. The appointment letters of Independent Directors has been placed on the Company’s website at www.arssgroup.

in. Independent Directors letters link.

Recently, SEBI vide its notification dated 9" May, 2018 has amended Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 effective from 1!
April, 2019. In view of the same Company is also complying the recent amendments in Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018.

(¥

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Training & Induction of Independent Directors:

Whenever new Non-executive and Independent Directors are inducted in the Board they are introduced to our Company’s
culture through appropriate orientation session and they are also introduced to our organization structure, our business,
constitution, board procedures, our major risks and management strategy.

Performance Evaluation of non-executive and Independent Directors

The Board evaluates the performance of Non-executive and Independent Directors every year. All the Non-executive
and Independent Directors are eminent personalities having wide experience in the field of business, industry and
administration. Their presence on the Board is advantageous and fruitful in taking business decisions.

Independent Directors Meeting

During the year under review, the Independent Directors of the Company met on 14" February, 2020 inter-alia, to
discuss:

i)  Evaluation of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors of the Company as a whole.

i)  Evaluation of performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors.

iii) Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Management and the Board that
is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

Board Committees:

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Presently the Company has
four committees i.e Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee
and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees,
appointment of members, and fixing of terms of reference for committee members are taken by the Board of Directors.
Details on the role and composition of these committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial
year and the related attendance, are provided below:
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4. Audit Committee:

i)

iii)

iv)

Terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the requirements of Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and Section 177(4) of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Audit Committee has powers which
are in line with the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee reviews the audit reports submitted by the Auditors,
financial results, effectiveness of internal audit processes and the Company’s risk management strategy. It reviews the
Company’s established systems and governed by a Charter which is in line with the regulatory requirements mandated
by the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations.

Composition:

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of 3 Non- Executive Director. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
(Independent Director) is financially literate and majority of them having accounting or related financial management
experience. The committee was reconstituted by a resolution passed by circulation dated 08.11.2019, to elect Mrs.
Janhabi Deo as Chairperson of the Committee. Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee. CFO & AVP
Finance are the permanent invitees in the Audit Committee meetings.

No. of Meetings held during the year:

During the year the Committee had 4 Meetings i.e. on 28" May, 2019, 12" August, 2019, 14" November,2019, and 14"
February, 2020.

Composition, name of Members and attendance during the year:

During the financial year 2019-20 the Audit Committee of the Board comprised of the following three Directors out of
which two are Independent Directors one is Nominee of State Bank of India and their attendance are given below:

Name of the member Position No. of No. of meetings
Meetings held during | Attended during the
the FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20
Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija Chairman* 4 4
Mr. Krishna Chandra Raut Member 4 4
Mrs. Janhabi Deo Member/Chairperson** 4 4

** Mrs. Janhabi Deo was elected as Chairperson of the committee w.e.f. 08.11.2019.

# The Chairman of the Audit Committee nominated Mrs. Janhabi Deo to present at AGM held on 25" September, 2019
to answer the Members’ queries.

5. Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting:

i)

ii)

iii)

Terms of reference:

This Committee shall identify the persons, who are qualified to become Directors of the Company (including independent
directors) / who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria lay down, recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal and also shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance. Committee
shall also formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independent of the Directors and
recommend to the Board a Policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI (LODR) Amendment Regulations, 2018. The Company Secretary is the Secretary
to the Committee. The Minutes of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings are noted by the Board.

Composition:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors
including Chairman. The committee was reconstituted by a resolution passed by circulation dated 08.11.2019, to elect
Mrs. Janhabi Deo as Chairperson of the Committee.

No. of Meetings held during the year:

During the year the Committee had 4 Meetings i.e. on 28" May, 2019, 12" August, 2019, 14" November, 2019 and 14"
February, 2020.
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iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

Composition, name of Members and attendance during the year:

During the financial year the Remuneration Committee of the Board comprised or following three Directors out of which
two Independent Directors and one is Nominee of State Bank of India in their attendance of each Director during the
meetings held in financial year 2019-20 are given below:

Name of the member Position No. of No. of meetings
Meetings held Attended during
during the FY the

2019-20 FY 2019-20

Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija Chairman** 4 4

Mr. Krishna Chandra Raut Member 4 4

Mrs. Janhabi Deo Member/Chairperson** 4 4

** Mrs. Janhabi Deo was elected as Chairperson of the committee w.e.f. 08.11.2019.
Remuneration to Directors

The remuneration provided to the Board Members, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) & Senior Management Personnel
(SMPs) is in adherence with the provisions of the listing agreement, Section 197, 198, 178 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.

Remuneration to Executive Directors: Remuneration policy / criteria of payment to Executive Directors:

The Company has a credible and transparent policy in determining and accounting for the remuneration of the
Chairman/ Managing Director / Whole Time Directors (MD / WTDs). Their remuneration is governed by the external
competitive environment; track record, potential, individual performance and performance of the company as well as
industry standards. The remuneration determined for Chairman/ MD / WTDs is subjected to the recommendation of
the nomination & remuneration committee and approval of the Board of Directors, members in due compliance of the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable rules made there under. As a policy, the Executive Directors are
neither paid sitting fee nor any commission.

Details of remuneration paid to Chairman/ Managing Director / Whole Time Directors for the year ended 31t March,
2020:

Name of the Director Position Salary Per Annum (% In Lacks)
Mr. Subash Agarwal Chairman Nil
Mr. Rajesh Agarwal Managing Director Nil

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors:

The Non-Executive Directors of the company are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees only for attending the meetings
of the Board of Directors and its Committees. The sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings
of Board of Directors is ¥ 40,000 per meeting and for Committee meetings is ¥ 20,000/- per meeting. Beside the sitting
fees they are also entitled to reimbursement of expenses for attending the meeting. The Non-Executive Directors of the
Company were not paid any other remuneration or commission.

viii) Sitting fee paid to the Non-Executive Directors, for 2019-20 are as detailed below:

Name of the Director Amount (% In Lacs)
Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija 4.20
Mr. Krishna Chandra Raut 4.00
Mr. Pareswar Panda 1.80
Mrs. Janhabi Deo 4.00
Total 14.00
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ix) Relationship of Non-Executive Directors with the Company and inter-se:

There is no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company and inter-se
themselves except for the sitting fees paid to them for attending the Board and Committee meetings.

Service Contracts, Severance Fee and Notice Period:

The appointment of the Executive Directors is governed by resolutions passed by the Board and the Shareholders of
the Company, which cover the terms and conditions of such appointment read with the service rules of the Company.
A separate Service Contract is not entered into by the Company with them. They can be terminated by either party
by giving three months notice in writing as per the T&C of appointment letters. Letters of appointment have been
issued by the Company to the Independent Directors, incorporating their roles, duties, responsibilities etc., which have
been accepted by them. There is no separate provision for payment of severance fee under the resolutions governing
the appointment of Executive Directors. The statutory provisions will however apply. With respect to notice period of
Directors, the statutory provisions will also apply.

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR):

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Terms of reference:
The Committee formulates CSR Policy. The role of the Committee is as under:

a. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities
to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred in the CSR policy.
c. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company and its implementation from time to time.

d. Such other functions as the Board may deem fit from time to time.
Composition, name of Members and attendance during the year:

The CSR Committee of the Company consists of 2 Non-Executive Independent Directors and 1 Executive Director.

Name of the member Position No. Of No. of meetings
Meetings held Attended during
during the FY the FY 2019-20

2019-20
Mr. Rajesh Agarwal Chairman 1 1
Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija Member 1 1
Mr. Pareswar Panda Member 1 1

No. of Meetings held during the year:
During the year the committee had met once i.e. on 28" May, 2019
Amount incurred on CSR activities during the year:

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, (CSR
Rules) makes it mandatory for certain companies who fulfill the criteria as mentioned under Sub Section 1 of Section
135 to comply with the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility and accordingly company had constituted a CSR
committee and has also adopted the CSR Policy for the company as approved by the committee.

Since the average of the last three years profit was in negative figures i.e. (3 27.94) crores loss, company need not to
incur any amount towards CSR in the FY 2019-20.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee

The CSR Committee has confirmed that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR
objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sd/-

(Chairman CSR Committee)
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee:
i) Terms of reference:

The Committee focuses primarily on monitoring expeditious redressal of investors / stakeholders grievances and also
functions in an efficient manner that all issues / concerns stakeholders are addressed / resolved promptly. It specifically
look into the mechanism of redressal of grievances of shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders
in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

ii) Composition of the Committee:
The Committee consists of 3 Non-Executive Directors.
iii) No. of meetings held and attended during the year:

During the year the Committee had 4 Meetings i.e. on 28" May, 2019, 12" August, 2019, 14" November, 2019 and 14"
February, 2020.

(iv) Composition, name of Members and attendance during the year:

Name of the member Position No. of No. of meetings
Meetings held attend
Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija Chairman* 4 4
Mr. Krishna Chandra Raut Member 4 4
Mrs. Janhabi Deo M.ember/ - 4 4
Chairperson

** Mrs. Janhabi Deo was elected as Chairperson of the committee w.e.f. 08.11.2019.

(v) Name and Designation of Compliance Officer:

During the year under review, Mr. Prakash Chhajer was appointed as Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer of
the company w.e.f. 28" May, 2019.

(vi) Shareholder’s Services:

SI. Nature of Complaint 2019-20 2018-19
No.
Received Resolved Received Resolved
1 All kind of Shareholders Complaint 1 1 NIL NIL

Risk Management Committee:

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on
12" February, 2015 has constituted a Risk Management Committee. This Committee comprises 3 Members i.e. Mr. Rajesh
Agarwal- Managing Director (Chairman of the committee), Mr. S. K. Pattanaik- Director (CFO) (Member of the Committee)
and Mr. Sunil Agarwal- Chief Executive Officer (Member of the Committee).

This Committee has been delegated the authority by the Board to review and monitor the implementation of the risk
management policy of the Company. No meeting of this Committee was mandatorily required to held during the financial
year i.e. 2019-20.

Subsidiary Company:

The company has only one subsidiary company i.e. ARSS Damoh- Hirapur Tolls Pvt. Ltd. which is also the material subsidiary
company. it is managed by their respective Board of Directors in the best interest of the company and their shareholders.
Pursuant to the Listing Regulations 2015, the minutes of Board meetings of the subsidiary company and details of significant
transactions and arrangements entered into by them are placed before the Board of Directors of the Company.
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1.

The financial statements of the subsidiary company are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company. Performance
review reports of subsidiary are also placed before the Board of Directors of the Company on a half-yearly basis.

The Company’s Policy for determination of a material subsidiary, as approved by the Board, may be accessed on its corporate

website at www.arssgroup.in

Other Committee:

The Company also has a Share Allotment Committee, Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) and Inspection Committee of the
Board constituted by the Board of directors.

Annual General Meetings:

i) Location and time for the last three AGM:

Year Date Time

Location

Special Business-Ordinary/ Special
Resolution

2016-17 |25-09-2017|11.00 A.M

Plot No-38, Sector-A, Zone-D,
Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar — 751 010.

Special Business & Ordinary Resolutions.

1. Ratification of Remuneration to Cost
Auditor for the financial year 2017-18

2. Appointment of Mr. Pareswar Panda as
Independent Director.

3. Re-appointment of Mr.Subash Agarwal,
Executive Chairman.

4. Service of Documents.
Special Business & Special Resolutions

5. Re-appointment of Mrs. Rima Dhawan,
Women/Independent Director.

2017-18 (27-09-2018 | 11.00 A.M

Plot No-38, Sector-A, Zone-D,
Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar — 751 010

Special Business & Ordinary Resolutions:

1. Reappointment of Mrs. Janhabi Deo as
Woman/Independent director

2. Approval of continuation of Mr. Swarup
Chandra Parija as Independent director

2018-19 |25-09-2019|11.00 A.M.

Plot No-38, Sector-A, Zone-D,
Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar — 751 010

Special Business

1. Ordinary Resolution for Ratification of
Remuneration to Cost Auditor for the
Financial year 2019-20

2. Special Resolution under section
180(1)(a) of the companies act, 2013
for creation of security

3. Special Resolution under section
180(1)(c) of the companies act, 2013 for
borrowing limit not exceeding ¥ 3500 cr.

4. Special Resolution under section 186
of the companies act, 2013 for making
investment /extending loans and giving
guarantees or providing securities
in connection with loans to persons/
bodies corporate.

ii) Extraordinary General Meeting

No EGM was conducted during the year under review.

iii) Postal Ballot

No Postal Ballot was conducted during the year under review.
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a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

)

h)

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest
of the company at large:

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Attention of
Members is drawn to the disclosures of transactions with the related parties set out in Notes on Accounts — Schedule
‘61, forming Part of the Annual Report. (required under Ind AS 24)

All related party transactions are negotiated on arms length basis and are intended to further the interests of the
Company. The Company has formulated a policy on Related Party Transactions and the said Policy is available on
the website of the Company at http:/arssgroup.in/pdf/ARSS%20POLICY%200N%20RELATED%20PARTY %20
TRANSACTIONS.pdf

The necessary approval of the audit committee and Board of directors were taken wherever required in accordance with
the Policy. Details of Related Party Transactions in form AOC 2 attached to Board Report may also be referred to.

Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the company by the stock
exchange or SEBI or any other Statutory Authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets, during the last
three years.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities on
all matters relating to capital markets during the last three years. No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or other statutory authorities relating to the above.

Whistle blower policy of the company

In accordance with requirement of Companies Act as well as SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 a vigil mechanism has
been adopted by the board of directors and accordingly a whistle blower policy has been formulated with a view to
provide a mechanism for employees of the company to approach Internal Auditor or Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company to report any grievance. During the year, no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee and
The Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-blower policy is put up on the Company’s website and can be accessed at hitp:/
arssgroup.in/pdf/WHISTLE%20BLOWER%20POLICY.pdf

Subsidiary Company

The company has one material unlisted subsidiary M/s. ARSS Damoh Hirapur Tolls Pvt. Ltd. and the company has also
formulated the policy for determining the material subsidiaries which are put on the website of the company and can be
access at http://arssgroup.in/pdf/ARSS%20Policy%20for%20determining%20material%20subsidiaries.pdf

Web link of the policy on dealing with related party transactions.

The company has formulated the Policies for dealing with the related party transaction and put on the website of the
company and can be accessed at http://arssgroup.in/pdf/ARSS%20POLICY %200N%20RELATED%20PARTY %20
TRANSACTIONS.pdf

Certificate from company secretary in practice on Disqualification of Directors

None of the Directors of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as a
Director by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs / Statutory Authorities, which has also been confirmed by Messrs. Sunita
Mohanty & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries.

Approval of the agenda items recommended by the committee of the board

there were no such instance during the year under review, where the recommendation of committees has not been
accepted by the board.

Fees paid to the statutory auditors of the company

During the year under review, the company has paid a consolidated fees of ¥ 23,00,000.00 to M/s. Ajay B Garg, The
Retiring Statutory Auditors of the company.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of woman at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition,and Redressal)
Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under.
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13.

14.

15.

Your Directors state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

i) Accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

k) Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

Pursuant to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 (‘SEBI PIT Regulations’), the Company had suitably modified its Securities Dealing Code (‘Code’) for prevention
of insider trading with effect from May 15, 2015. The objective of the Code is to prevent purchase and / or sale of shares
of the Company by an Insider on the basis of unpublished price sensitive information. Under this Code, Designated
Persons (Directors, Advisors, Officers and other concerned employees / persons) are prevented from dealing in the
Company’s shares during the closure of Trading Window. To deal in securities beyond specified limit, permission of
Compliance Officer is also required. Directors and designated employees who buy and sell shares of the Company are
prohibited from executing contra-trades during the next six months following the prior transactions. The Company has a
policy for taking action against employees who violate the SEBI PIT Regulations / Code.

Pursuant to the enactment of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, the Company
has suitably modified the provisions of the Code and formulated requisite policies which are effective from 15t April 2019.

Mr. Prakash Chhajer, Company Secretary has been designated as the Compliance Officer and Chief Investor Relations
Officer. The Company also formulated Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price
Sensitive Information which is available on Company’s Website www.arssgroup.in

I) Policy on preservation of documents and archival policy

In accordance with Regulation 9 of SEBI Regulations, 2015, the Company has framed a Policy on preservation of
documents approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Policy is intended to define preservation of
documents and to provide guidance to the executives and employees working in the Company to make decisions that
may have an impact on the operations of the Company. It not only covers the various aspects on preservation of the
Documents, but also the safe disposal/destruction of the Documents.

Further the Company has an Archival Policy in line with the requirements of SEBI Regulations to ensure that information
relating to the Company is adequately disclosed on its web-site as required by law.

The Policies have been uploaded on the Company’s website at http://arssgroup.in/pdf/ARSS%20Policy-on-preservation-
of-documents.pdf

Means of Communication.

Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are communicated to the Stock Exchanges immediately
after the same are considered by the Board and are published in the all India editions of Business Standard and Odisha
edition of Nitidin. The results, official detailed presentations made to media, analysts and institutional investors, etc. are
displayed on the Company’s website www.arssgroup.in.

SEBI Complaints Redressal System (SCORES):

SEBI has initiated SCORES for processing the investor complaints in a centralized web based redress system and online
redressal of all the shareholders complaints. The company is in compliance with the SCORES and redressed the shareholders
complaints well within the stipulated time

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

As stipulated by SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulation, 2018, a qualified Chartered Accountant or a Practicing
Company Secretary carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSIL) and the total issued and
paid-up capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the stock exchanges and is
placed before the board of directors of the Company for their information. The audit, inter alia, confirms that the listed and
paid up capital of the company is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form held
with NSDL and CDSIL and the total number of shares in physical form.
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Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance:

As part of the green initiative process, the company has taken an initiative of sending documents like notice calling Annual
General meeting, Corporate Governance Report, Directors Report, audited Financial Statements, Auditors Report, Dividend
intimations etc., by email. Physical copies are sent only to those shareholders whose email addresses are not registered
with the company and for the bounced-mail cases. Shareholders are requested to register their email id with Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent / concerned depository to enable the company to send the documents in electronic form or inform the
company in case they wish to receive the above documents in paper mode.

Designated depository

SEBI, vide circular dated December 01, 2015, had introduced system-driven disclosures in securities market detailing the
procedure to be adopted for its implementation with effect from January 01, 2016. The procedure was further streamlined
vide SEBI circular dated December 21, 2016. As specified in SEBI circular dated December 01, 2015, the system is
being implemented in phases and in the first phase, the disclosures of promoter/promoter group under SEBI (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 and SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 have
been implemented, company had given required details about the same to concern authorities.

As per SEBI circular dated May 28, 2018 for implementation of the next phase of systems driven disclosure, Company had
already provided to both depositories the information about its directors and employees in the manner prescribed by the
depositories.

Company has appointed National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) as its Designated Depository in order to comply
with the SEBI Circular No. IMD/FPIC/CIR/P/2018/61 dated April 5, 2018 regarding Monitoring of Foreign Investment limits in
listed Indian companies.

Compliance:
i) Non compliance of any requirement of corporate governance

There is no Non-Compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub para (2) to (10) of the Part C
of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

ii) Compliance with mandatory requirements
The Company has complied with all the mandatory items of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

iii) The disclosures on corporate governance as required under Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses of sub-regulation (2) of 46
(Except Clause n, o and p - those are not Applicable to Company) have been adhered and complied with.

iv) Compliance with the Discretionary

Requirements under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Adoption of discretionary requirements of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 is being reviewed by the Company from time to time.

v) Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

The Company has obtained a Certificate from its Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate
governance, as stipulated in Regulation 34(3) and PART E of Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Regulations, which together
with this Report on Corporate Governance is annexed to the Directors’ Report and shall be sent to all the members of
the Company and the Stock Exchanges along with the Annual Report of the Company.

Investor safeguards and other information:

i) Dematerialization of shares

Members are requested to convert their physical holdings to demat/electronic form through any of the registered
Depository Participants (DPs) to avoid the hassles involved in dealing in physical shares such as possibility of loss,
mutilation, etc. and also to ensure safe and speedy transaction in respect of the shares held.

ii) Update address/ email address / bank details

To receive all communications/corporate actions promptly, members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested
to please update their address/email address/bank details with the respective DPs and in case of physical shares, the
updated details have to be intimated to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents.
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iii) Register Nomination(s)

Members holding shares in physical form, are requested to register the name of their nominee(s), who shall succeed
the member as the beneficiary of their shares and in order to avail this nomination facility, they may obtain/submit the
prescribed form from the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are
requested to register their nominations directly with their respective DPs

iv) Dealing of Securities With Registered Intermediaries

In respect of dealings in securities, members must ensure that they deal only with SEBI registered intermediaries and
must obtain a valid contract note/ confirmation memo from the broker/sub-broker within 24 hours of execution of the
trade(s) and it should be ensured that the contract note/confirmation memo contains details about order no., trade no.,
trade time, quantity, price and brokerage.

v) E-voting and VC/OAVM facilities to members to attend the AGM

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide members the facility to exercise their right to vote
at the 20" Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting
Services provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA) has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020
dated May 5, 2020 in relation to ‘Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM’) through video conferencing
(‘VC’) or other audio visual means (‘OAVM’) read with General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and General
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 in relation to ‘Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions
by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder on account of the threat posed by
Covid-19’ (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide
its circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 in relation to ‘Additional relaxation in relation
to compliance with certain provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 —
Covid-19 pandemic’ (‘SEBI Circular’) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (AGM’/‘the Meeting’) through
VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act’), the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI
Listing Regulations’) and MCA Circulars, Members will be provided with a facility of electronic voting (e-voting) and
for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM by the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) e-voting system i.e.
HYPERLINK “http://www.evoting.nsdl.com” www.evoting.nsdl.com

vi) Consolidate multiple folios (in respect of physical shareholding)

Members are requested to consolidate their shareholdings under multiple folios to eliminate the receipt of multiple
communications and this would ensure that future correspondence/corporate benefits could then be sent to the
consolidated folio.

Skills, expertise and competencies of directors

ARSS believes that it is the collective effectiveness of the Board that impacts Company performance and therefore members
of the Board amongst themselves should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the Company.

Given the Company’s size, scale and diversified nature of its businesses, the Directors should possess one or more of the
following skills, expertise and competencies:

CORE SKILLS / EXPERTISE /COMPETENCIES AVAILABLE WITH THE BOARD

The Board comprises of qualified members who possess required skills, expertise and competencies that allow them to
make effective contributions to the Board and its Committees.

The following skills / expertise / competencies have been identified for the effective functioning of the Company and are
currently available with the Board:
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Sr. | Experience / Expertise / Comments

No. | Attribute

1 Leadership Ability to envision the future and prescribe a strategic goal for the Company, help
the Company to identify possible road maps, inspire and motivate the strategy,
approach, processes and other such key deliverables and mentor the leadership
team to channelize its energy/ efforts in appropriate direction. Be a thought leader
for the Company and be a role model in good governance and ethical conduct
of business, while encouraging the organization to maximize shareholder value.
Should have had hands on experience of leading an entity at the highest level of
management practices.

2 Industry knowledge and Should possess domain knowledge in businesses in which the Company
experience participates viz. Infrastructure, Power, Heavy Engineering, Technical projects.

Must have the ability to leverage the developments in the areas of engineering
and technology and other areas as appropriate for betterment of Company’s
business.

3 Experience and Exposure in Should possess ability to develop professional relationship with the Policy makers
policy shaping and industry and Regulators for contributing to the shaping of Government policies in the areas
advocacy of Company’s businesses.

4 Governance including legal Commitment, belief and experience in setting corporate governance practices
compliance to support the Company’s robust legal compliance systems and governance

policies/practices.

5 Expertise/Experience in Ability to understand financial policies, accounting statements and disclosure
Finance & Accounts / Audit / practices and contribute to the financial/risk management policies/ practices of
Risk Management areas the Company across its business lines and geography of operations.

6 Behavioral and Human The attributes and competencies enabling individual Board members to use their
Resources Expertise. knowledge and skills to function well as team members and to interact with key

stakeholders and Employees (Stake Holder Management, Sound Judgment,
Listing Ability, Verbal Communication, Interpersonal Skill, Mentoring Ability, HR
Management)

The above list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of its
business(es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively, are available with the Board. The mapping of the Skill Matrix for the
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FY 2019-20 for all the Directors is as follows:

Sr. | Name of the Leadership | Industry | Experience and | Governance | Expertise/ | Behavioral
No. | Director knowledge Exposure in including Experience and
and policy shaping legal in Finance & Human
experience and industry | compliance | Accounts/ | Resources
advocacy Audit / Risk | Expertise.
Management
areas

1 2 3 4 5 6
1 | Mr. Subash Agarwal J J J J J J
2 | Mr. Rajesh Agarwal J J J J J {
3 | Mr.K.C.Raut J - { J J J
4 | Mr.S.C.Parija J - - { | -
5 | Mr. Pareswar Panda J J - N - J
6 | Mrs. Janhabi Deo J - J J yJ {

The above list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of its
business(es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively, are available with the Board. Absence of any skill does not necessarily
mean that the Director does not possess the skills.
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21. General Shareholder’s Information:

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

Day, Date and Time of AGM

Tuesday, the 29" Day of September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M.

Venue of AGM

In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 read
with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively
referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) permitted the holding of the Annual
General Meeting (‘AGM’) through VC/OAVM, without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance
with the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations, and MCA
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/
OAVM. The deemed venue of the AGM shall be At Plot No-38,
Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate, Bhubaneswar
-751010 (Odisha)

Book closure Date

Tuesday, the 22" Day of September, 2020 to Tuesday, the 29" Day
of September, 2020 (both days inclusive)

Dividend Payment Date
Date of declaration

Rate of dividend

Book Closure Date

Date of payment of dividend
Amount of dividend paid

Not Applicable

Company Registration Details

The Company is registered in the State of Odisha, India. The
Corporate Identification Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L141030R2000PLC006230

Listing on Stock Exchange

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Stock /Scrip Code BSE : 533163
NSE : ARSSINFRA- EQ
ISIN Numbers INE267101010 (NSDL & CDSL)

Financial Calendar

15t April, 2020 — 31t March, 2021

First Quarter Results Up to 15" September, 2020

Second Quarter Results Up to 14" November, 2020

Third Quarter Results Up to 14" February, 2021

Fourth Quarter Results Up to 30" May, 2021

E-Voting & VC/OAVM facilities to members to attend
the AGM

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act,
2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, as substituted by the Companies (Management
and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, members have been provided the facility to
exercise their right to vote at General Meetings by electronic means,
through e-Voting Services provided by NSDL.

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic , Members will be provided with
a facility of electronic voting (e-voting) and for attending the AGM
through VC/OAVM by the National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) e-voting system i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com
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Market Price Data : High, Low during each month in
the Financial Year 2019-2020

Refer Table No. 1

Performance in comparison to board indices BSE
Sensex & Nifty 50

Refer Table No. 2

Suspension from Trading

No Security of the Company has been suspended from trading on
BSE and NSE.

Registrar & Transfer Agents.

Bigshare Services Private Limited
18t Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,
Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road,
Marol, Andheri East,

Mumbai — 400059 Maharashtra

Tel: + 91 22-62638261

Fax: + 91 22-62638299

e-mail ids:
marketing @ bigshareonline.com
investor @bigshareonline.com
Website:www.bigshareonline.com

Share Transfer/ Transmission System

Request for Transfers/Transmission of shares held in physical form
can be lodged with Bigshare Services Private Limited at the above
mentioned addresses. The transfers are normally processed within
15 days from the date of receipt if the documents are complete in
all respects.

SEBI has vide its circular dated 7 January, 2010 made it mandatory
to furnish a copy of PAN Card in the following cases for transmission
of shares in physical form:

a) Deletion of name of the deceased shareholder(s), where the
shares are held in the name of two or more shareholders.

b) Transmission of shares to the legal heir(s), where deceased
shareholder was the sole holder.

c) Transposition of shares in case of change in the order of
names in which physical shares are held jointly in the names
of two or more shareholders.

The Board has delegated the authority for approving transfers,
transmissions etc. of the Company’s securities to the committee.
Such transactions are placed before next committee meeting
and Board Meeting. The Company obtains from a Company
Secretary in Practice, a half yearly certificate of compliance with
the share transfer formalities as required under Regulation 40(9)
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 erstwhile Clause 47(c) of the
Listing Agreement and files a copy of the certificate with the Stock
Exchanges.

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
(As on (As on
31st March, 2020) | 315t March, 2019)
Shares Transferred NIL NIL
Total No. of shares 2,27,37,966 2,27,37,966
% on Share Capital NIL NIL
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Distribution of Shareholding

Refer Table No. 3

Shareholding Pattern

Refer Table No. 4

Top Ten Shareholder of the company

Refer Table No. 5

Dematerialization of Securities and Liquidity

The Company’s Shares are available for trading in the Depository
System both at the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Demat
Status of the Company as on March 31, 2020 is as under:

Particulars No. of % No. of %
Shareholders Shares

CDSL 8045| 46.86% | 13458612|59.19%

NSDL 9116| 53.10%| 9266627 |40.75%

PHYSICAL 8 0.04% 127271 0.06%

TOTAL 17169 | 100.00% | 22737966 | 100.00%

And on an average the dematerialization process is completed
within a period of 15 days from receipt of a valid demat request
along with all documents.

Outstanding GDR/ADR or warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion date and likely
impact on equity.

As on March 31 2020, The Company had No outstanding warrants
to be converted in to shares.
The company has not issued any GDR's/ ADR’s.

Commodity Price risk / Foreign Exchange risk and
hedging activities

Commodity Price Risk / Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging
Activities: The core business of storage infrastructure and renewable
energy are not prone to commodity price risk/foreign exchange risk.
Accordingly, the Company adopts adhoc hedging tools on need
basis for transactions involving foreign exchange.

Plant Locations

Refer Table No. 6

Address for Correspondence

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ARSS Infrastructure Projects Ltd.

Sector-A, Zone-D, Plot No.-38,

Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar-751010 (ORISSA)

Tel: (0674) 2602763

E-mail Address: cs @arssgroup.in

Payment of Listing Fees

Annual listing fee for the year 2019-2020 has been paid by the
Company to BSE & NSE.

Payment of Depository Fees

Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2019-2020 has been paid by
the Company to NSDL and CDSL.
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TABLE - 1: STOCK MARKET PRICE DATA

High Low and trade volumes each month & compared to closing respective index during the financial year 2019-20 of the
company at BSE and NSE:

Sl. |Month & Year Bombay Stock Exchange National Stock Exchange
No. High Price Low Price No. of Share High Price Low Price No. of Share
(In%) (In%) Traded (In%) (In) Traded

1 |Apr-19 63.00 42.05 399,561 63.30 42.00 975,228
2 |May-19 53.40 39.05 60,039 54.50 40.00 199,521
3 |Jun-19 41.45 32.00 44,502 43.00 31.00 118,150
4 |Jul-19 42.05 26.70 65,101 42.05 26.90 231,209
5 |Aug-19 29.95 20.50 49,354 28.85 20.20 202,114
6 |Sep-19 29.75 20.25 88,288 29.70 2.20 197,265
7 |Oct-19 26.50 19.00 54,557 26.75 18.80 284,642
8 |Nov-19 26.95 22.65 86,333 26.80 22.30 432,035
9 |Dec-19 26.30 20.10 63,441 26.45 20.20 341,324
10 |Jan-20 22.50 19.60 51,083 23.25 19.35 362,846
11 |Feb-20 21.50 13.30 244,910 21.60 12.60 797,230
12 |Mar-20 15.80 9.11 97,617 16.25 9.00 627,771

TABLE - 2: PERFORMANCE OF THE SHARE PRICE OF THE COMPANY IN COMPARISON TO BSE SENSEX AND
NIFTY50 FOR THE PERIOD 1ST APRIL, 2019 TO 31ST MARCH, 2020 IS GIVEN BELOW:
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TABLE - 3: DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2020
Sl. |Range (In%) As on 31°' March, 2020 As on 315t March, 2019
No. Folios %age Shares Y%age Folios Y%age Shares %age
Amount Amount
(In) (In%)
1 |Up to 5000 14546 84.72%| 17303130 7.61% 15,167| 85.27%| 18,175,720 7.99%
2 |5001-10000 1201 6.99% 9833080 4.32% 1,219 6.85%| 9,894,730 4.35%
3 [10001-20000 669 3.90%| 10155050 4.47% 663 3.73%| 10,065,820 4.43%
4 |20001-30000 252 1.47% 6460260 2.84% 224 1.26%| 5,794,700 2.55%
5 [30001-40000 96 0.56% 3435120 1.51% 95 0.53%| 3,386,570 1.49%
6 |40001-50000 86 0.50% 4012860 1.77% 108 0.61%| 5,064,480 2.23%
7 |50001-100000 141 0.82% 10114140 4.45% 135 0.76%| 9,653,740 4.25%
8 |100001 and above 178 1.04%| 166066020 73.03% 177 1.00%| 165,343,900 72.72%
TOTAL 17169 100%| 227379660 100% 17,788| 100.0%| 227,379,660 100.0%
TABLE - 4: SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2020
Sl. |CATEGORY FOLIOS %AGE NO. OF %AGE
No. SHARES
1 |Corporate Bodies 112 0.6523 1185857 5.2153
2 |Corporate Bodies NBFC 1 0.0058 8700 0.0383
3 |Non Nationalised Banks Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 |Non Resident Indians 123 0.7164 258915 1.1387
5 |Promoters 14 0.0816 10619468 46.7036
6 |Public 16834 98.0488 10522576 46.2776
7 |Trust 1 0.0058 15 0.0001
8 |IEPF 1 0.0058 11782 0.0518
9 |Others 83 0.4834 130653 0.5746
TOTAL 17619 100.00 22737966 100.00

Shareholding pattern of the Company in detail is presented in MGT — 9 enclosed to the Board’s report as Annexure ‘C’
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TABLE - 5: Top Ten Shareholders of the Company as on 31t March, 2020

SR. INAME OF SHAREHOLDERS CATEGORY NO. OF %
NO SHARES
1 |Sidhant Financial Services Ltd Promoter Group 3,393,031 14.92%
2 |ARSS Developers Ltd. Promoter Group 3,183,480 14.00%
3 |Mr. Subash Agarwal Promoters 1,381,608 6.08%
4 |Mr. Mohanlal Agarwal Promoters 761,750 3.35%
5 |Mr. Rajesh Agarwal Promoters 538,745 2.37%
6 [Mr. Anil Agarwal Promoters 339,821 1.49%
7 |Tao Builders And Developers Pvt. Ltd. Corporate Bodies 333,000 1.46%
8 [Ms. Manisha Jitendra Bhadra Public 300,000 1.32%
9 |Mr. Sunil Agarwal Promoters 278,647 1.22%
10 |Mrs. Sabita Agarwal Promoters 217,383 0.96%
TOTAL 10,727,465 4718%

TTABLE - 6:DETAILS OF PLANT AND LOACATIONS:

CRUSHER PLANT

HOT MIX PLANT

HOT-MIX AND WET MIX PLANT

1. At - Durgapur (Chatrama), 1.
PO - Bajapur, Dist - Khurda,
Pin-752060, Odisha.

At/P.o - Kharbhuin, PS -
Harbhanga, Charichhak, Dist -
Boudh.Pin-762020, Odisha.

At - Nirmula, PO - Kursud,
P.S. Sindhikela, Tahsil - Titlagarh,
Dist - Bolangir Pin-767035, Odisha.

At-Kelar,P.o-Kakirguma, Laxmipur |4.
Pin-765013, (Odisha)

Dist — Koraput, Odisha.

At- Mundher,P.o-Jhankarpali,
PS- Jujamura, Dist- Sambalpur,
PIN-768005, Odisha.

At-Dankari,Po- Chadhaidhara,
Dist - Jajpur Pin-755023, Odisha.

At-Nuasahi, Po-Badimunda,
Tahasil-Tikabali,
Dist-Kandhamal(Phulbani)
Pin-762010, Odisha.

At - Nityanandapuir, 1.
PO - Nihalprasad, Dist -
Dhenkanal, Pin-759016, Odisha.

At- Mundher,P.o-Jhankarpali, 2.
PS- Jujamura, Dist- Sambalpur
Pin-768005, Odisha.
At-Dankari, Po- Chadhaidhara, 3.
Dist - Jajpur Pin-755023, Odisha.
At-Nuasahi, Po-Badimunda, 4.
Tahasil-Tikabali, Dist-
Kandhamal(Phulbani) Pin-762010,
Odisha.
At-Dankari, Po- Chadhaidhara, 5.
Dist - Jajpur Pin-755023, Odisha.

6.

At - Durgapur (Chatrama),
PO - Bajapur, Dist - Khurda,
Pin-752060, Odisha.

At/P.o - Kharbhuin,
PS - Harbhanga, Charichhak,
Dist — Boudh, Pin-762020, Odisha.

At - Nirmula, PO - Kursud,
P.S. Sindhikela, Tahsil - Titlagarh,
Dist - Bolangir Pin-767035, Odisha.

At-Kelar,P.o-Kakirguma,
Laxmipur,Dist — Koraput, Pin-
765013,0disha.

At/Po - Saintal Station Yard,
Saintala, Bolangir Pin-752060,
Odisha.

At-Dankari, Po- Chadhaidhara,
Dist - Jajpur Pin-755023, Odisha.
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DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR REGULATION 34(3) PART D OF THE SEBI LISTING REGULATIONS

To,

The Members,

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited,
Bhubaneswar.

| hereby declare that all the Directors and the designated employees in the senior management of the Company have
affirmed compliance with their respective codes for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

Sd/-
Place: Bhubaneswar (Rajesh Agarwal)
Date: 27.08.2020 Managing Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place: Bhubaneswar (Subash Agarwal)
Date: 27.08.2020 Chairman
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

To,

The Board of Directors,

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited,
Mancheswar, Bhubaneswar,

Odisha, India.

Sub: Compliance Certificate Under Regulation 17(8) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015

We, Rajesh Agarwal, Managing Director and S. K. Pattanaik, Chief Financial Officer of ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited
hereby declare, confirm and certify as under in respect of Annual Accounts for the year ended 31t March, 2020:

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited for the year
ended on 31t March, 2020 and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:
(1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and.

(3) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management
or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited For ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited
Sd/- Sd/-

(Rajesh Agarwal) (S. K. Pattanaik)

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: 27.08.2020
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members,

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited
Bhubaneswar, Odisha.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited (“the
Company”), for the year ended on March 31, 2020, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2)
and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing
Regulations™).

Managements’ Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the
Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes
of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification
of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”), the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per
the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAl which requires that we comply with the
ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms
that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.
Opinion

Best of our information and according to our examination of the relevant records and the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2020.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For ARMS & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
(CA Manoj Kumar Gupta)
Proprietor
Membership No: 089677

Place: Gurgaon UDIN-20089677AAAACV7332
Date: 27.08.2020
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CERTIFICATE BY A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE
[Pursuant to clause (i) of point 10 of para C of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange of Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

We have examined the following documents:
I.  Declaration of non-disqualification as required under Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’);
Il. Disclosure of concern or interests as required under Section 184 of the Act; (hereinafter referred to as ‘relevant documents’),

As submitted by the Directors of ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited (‘the Company’) bearing CIN: L141030R2000PLC006230
and having its registered office at Plot No-38, Sector-A Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate Bhubaneswar-751 010, to the
Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) for the Financial Year 2019-20. We have considered non-disqualification to
include non-debarment by Regulatory / Statutory Authorities.

It is the responsibility of Directors to submit relevant documents with complete and accurate information in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

Based on our examination of relevant documents made available to us by the Company and such other verifications carried out
by us as deemed necessary and to the extent possible, in our opinion and to the best of our information and knowledge and
according to the explanations provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives, we certify that as on date of
this Certificate, none of the Directors on the Board of the Company, as listed hereunder, have been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by Securities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Name Category DIN
Mr. Subash Agarwal Executive Director 00218066
(Chairman)

Mr. Rajesh Agarwal Executive Director 00217823
(Managing Director)

Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija Independent Director 00363608
Mr. Krishna Chandra Raut Nominee Director 03592433
Mr. Pareswar Panda Independent Director 07902468
Mrs. Janhabi Deo Independent Woman Director 07257699

This Certificate has been issued at the request of the Company to make disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report of the
Financial Year ended 31t March, 2020.

For Sunita Mohanty & Associates

Sd/-
Jyotirmoy Mishra, Partner
Company Secretary in practice
C.P. No.-6022

Place: Bhubaneswar UDIN-F006556B000619058
Date: 26.08.2020
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Annexure - C

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

L141030R2000PLC006230

Registration Date

17/05/2000

Name of the Company

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

Public Company Having Share Capital

Address of the Registered office and contact details

Plot No-38, Sector-A, Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar-751 010, Odisha, India.

Whether listed company

Yes

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and
Transfer Agent, if any

Bigshare Services Private Limited

15t Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building,

Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road,

Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai- 400059, Maharashtra

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. | Name and Description of main products NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No. | / services Product/service company
1 | Construction related 99532 100%

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010.

Sl. | Name and Address of The Company CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
No. Subsidiary / | Shares Section
Associate held
1 | ARSS Damoh-Hirapur Tolls Private limited | U45201 OR2011PTC013524 Subsidiary 99.82% 2 (87)
Address: Plot No. -38, Sector-A, Company
Zone-D, Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar- 751010.
2 | ARSS Developers Limited. U452090R2007PLC009201 Associate 38.41% 2 (6)
Address: Plot No-38, Sector-A, Company
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i)
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Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the | No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Shareholders year [As on 01-April-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] Change
Demat |Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of during
Total Total the year
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 4042957 0| 4042957 17.78 4042957 0 4042957 1778 0.00
b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0| 0.00 0 0 0| 0.00 0.00
d) Bodies Corp. 6576511 0 6576511 28.92 6576511 0 6576511 28.92 0.00
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
f) Any other 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub Total A (1) 10619468 0| 10619468 46.70| 10619468 0| 10619468 46.70 0.00
(2) Foreign
a) NRiIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Other — Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0| 0.00 0.00
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub Total A (2) 0 0 0| 0.00 0 0 0| 0.00 0.00
Total shareholding of | 10619468 0| 10619468 46.70| 10619468 0| 10619468 46.70 0.00
Promoter
(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0| 0.00 0.00
gzjxggt“'e Capital ol 0.00 o/ 000/ 000
0 Allernate Investment 0 0 0|  0.00 0 0 o| 000/ 0.00
I"gs'zfu'l:‘osn/s Financial 93000 0|  93000| 0.41 600 0 600 0.00| (0.41)
e) Central Govt. 0 0| 0.00 0 0 0| 0.00 0.00
f) State Govt(s) 0 0| 0.00 0 0 0| 0.00] 0.00
?;)o'rﬂf)‘;ﬁr;f 0 0 o/ 0.00 0 0 o/ 000/ 000
h) Flls 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00




ARSS‘
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the | No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Shareholders year [As on 01-April-2019] [As on 31-March-2020] Change
Demat |Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of :urmg
Total Total |the year
Shares Shares

) Foreign Venture 0 0 o/ 0.0 0 0 o| 000 0.0
Capital Funds
j) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0| 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (B)(1):- 93000 0 93000 0.41 600 600 0.00| (0.41)
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 2125539 0| 2125539 9.35 1185857 1185857 522 (4.13)
ii) Overseas 0 0 0.00 0 0| 0.00 0.00
b) Individuals 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
i) Individual 6711500 12727 6724227 29.57| 6272332 12727 6285059| 2764| (1.93)
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto X 2 lakh
i) Individual 2899018 0| 2899018 12.75| 3583068 0 3583068| 15.76 3.01
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of X 2 lakh
NBFCs registered with 8700 0 8700 0.04 8700 0 8700 0.04 0.00
RBI
c) Others (specify)
i) Non Resident 201725 0 201725 0.89 258915 0 258915 1.14 0.25
Indians
ii) Overseas Corporate 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bodies
iii) Foreign Nationals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
iv) Clearing Members 54492 0 54492 0.24 130053 0 130053 0.57 0.33
v) Trusts 15 0 15 0.00 15 0 15 0.00 0.00
vi) Foreign Bodies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
vii) IEPF 11782 0 11782 0.05 11782 0 11782 0.05 0.00
viii) HUF 0 0 0 0.00 654449 0 654449 2.88 2.88
Sub-total (B)(2):- 12012771 12727| 12025498 52.89| 12105171 12727 12117898 53.29 0.41
Total Public 12105771 12727 12118498 53.30| 12105771 12727| 12118498| 53.30| (0.00)
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0| 0.00 0.00
Custodian for GDRs
& ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) | 22725239| 12727| 22737966 100.00| 22725239 12727| 22737966 100.00| (0.00)
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

(iii)
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Sl. | Shareholder’s Name | Shareholding at the beginning of the | No. of Shares held at the end of the %
No. year (01.04.2019) year [As on 31-March-2020] change
No. of % of % shares No. of % of % shares ":'O?S;re
Shares totals pledged/ Shares totals pledged/ 'ing
during
shares | encumbered shares | encumbered the vear
of the to total of the to total y
Company shares Company shares
1 | Mr. Mohanlal agarwal 761,750 3.35 3.35 761750 3.35 3.35 0
2 | Mr.Subash Agarwal 1,381,608 6.08 5.16 1381608 6.08 5.16 0
3 | Mr. Anil agarwal 339,821 1.49 1.28 339821 1.49 1.28 0
4 | Mr.Rajesh Agarwal 538,745 2.37 1.57 538745 2.37 1.57 0
5 | Mr.Sunil Agarwal 278,647 1.23 0.29 278647 1.23 0.29 0
6 | Mrs.Ramdulari 184,483 0.81 - 184483 0.81 - 0
Agarwal
7 | Mrs.Sanju Agarwal 118,704 0.52 - 118704 0.52 - 0
8 | Mrs.Seema Agarwal 20,020 0.09 - 20020 0.09 - 0
9 | Mrs. Sangita agarwal 123,796 0.54 - 123796 0.54 - 0
10 | Mrs.Sabita Agarwal 217,383 0.96 - 217383 0.96 - 0
11 | Mr.Ramesh Prasad 3,000 0.01 - 3000 0.01 - 0
Agrawal
12 | Mrs.Shilpa Agarwal 75,000 0.33 - 75000 0.33 -
13 | ARSS Developers Ltd | 3,183,480 14.00 -| 3183480 14.00 -
14 | Sidhant Financial 3,393,031 14.92 -| 3393031 14.92 -
Services Ltd
TOTAL 10,619,468 46.70 11.64 | 10,619,468 46.70 11.64 0
Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)
Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
(01.04.2019) (31.03.2020)
No. of % of total % of total
No. of
shares shares of shares of
shares
the company the company
1 At the beginning of the year (01.04.2019) 1,06,19,468 46.70 | 1,06,19,468 46.70
2 At the end of the year (31.03.2020) 1,06,19,468 46.70 | 1,06,19,468 46.70



Mr.Subash
Mr.Rajesh
Mr.Sunil
Mrs.Ramdulari
Mrs.Sanju
Mrs.Seema
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Mr.Ramesh
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

(v)

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRSs):

Sr. Name of Shareholders Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of the
No. beginning of the year Year (31.03.2020)
(01.04.2019)
No. of % of total shares No. of % of total shares
shares of the company shares of the company
1 | MANISHA JITENDRA BHADRA 300,000 1.32 355,000 1.56
2 | TAO BUILDERS AND DEVELOPERS PVT 343,000 1.51 333,000 1.46
LTD.
3 | UPASANA RESOURCES PRIVATE LIMITED. 200,000 0.88 200,000 0.88
4 | ARUN THARYABHAI BHADRA 13,510 0.06 166,002 0.73
5 | JALAN TUBES LIMITED 157,660 0.69 157,660 0.69
6 | VIRAF DINSHAW MEHTA 152,481 0.67 152,481 0.67
7 | BHANWAR LAL BHOOTRA HUF. 117,115 0.52 128,886 0.57
8 | VIRAL JITENDRA BHADRA 101,616 0.45 115,000 0.51
9 | SWATI AGARWAL 113,794 0.50 114,294 0.50
10 | ANANTHI KARIKALAN 903 0.00 108,404 0.48
TOTAL 1,500,079 6.60 1,830,727 8.05

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. | Shareholding of each Directors and each Key Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of
No. | Managerial Personnel beginning of the year the Year (31.03.2020)
(01.04.2019)
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
Directors
1 Mr. Subash Agarwal 13,81,608 6.08 13,81,608 6.08
2 Mr. Rajesh Agarwal 5,38,745 2.37 5,38,745 2.37
3 Mr. Swarup Chandra Parija - - - -
4 Mr. Krishna Chandra Raut - - - -
5 Mr.Pareswar Panda - - - -
6 Mrs. Janhabi Deo - - - -
Key Managerial Personnel
1 Mr. Soumendra Keshari Pattanaik 120 0.0008 120 0.00008
2 Mr. Prakash Chhajer - - - -
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V.

VL.
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INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(X In Lacs)
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year (01.04.2019)
i) Principal Amount 167,655 1,333 - 168,989
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 167,655 1,333 - 168,989
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year
* Addition 22,909 95 23,004
* Reduction 27,145 330 27,475
Net Change (4,236) (235) - (4,471)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
(31.03.2020)
i) Principal Amount 163,420 1,099 164,518
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii-+iii) 163,420 1,099 - 164,518
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A) Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
(% In Lacs)
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD, WTD OR MANAGER Total Amount
No. Mr. Subash Agarwal | Mr. Rajesh Agarwal (In Lacs)
(Executive Chairman) | (Managing Director)
1 Gross salary 0.00 0.00 0.00
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 0.00 0.00 0.00
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax NIL NIL NIL
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section NIL NIL NIL
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option NIL NIL NIL
3 | Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4 | Commission NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 | Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL
Total (A) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ceiling as per the Act % 60.00 lakhs ¥ 60.00 lakhs % 120.00 lakhs

for each director (Managing Director / Whole Time Director) (being
the maximum remuneration payable as per part A, Section —Il of
schedule V to the companies act, 2013)
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

(X In Lacs)

Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Mr. S.C.
Parija

Mr.
Pareswar
Panda

Mr. K.C.
Raut

Mrs.
Janhabi
Deo

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

4.20

1.80

4.00

10.00

Commission

Others, please specify
(Incidental exp. For attending meetings)

0.10

0.20

0.20

0.50

Total (1)

4.30

2.00

4.20

10.50

Other Non-Executive Directors (ND)

Fee for attending board committee meetings

- 4.00

4.00

Commission

Others, please specify
(Incidental exp. for attending meetings)

0.20

0.20

Total (2)

- 4.20

4.20

Total (B)=(1+2)

4.30

2.00

4.20

4.20

14.70

Total Managerial Remuneration

4.30

2.00

4.20

4.20

14.70

emuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/W.T.D

Sr.
No

Particular Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. S.K. Pattanaik
(Chief Financial
Officer)

Mr. Prakash Chhajer
(Company Secretary)

Total
(R In Lacs)

Gross Salary

Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

30.00

13.75

43.75

Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
as % of profit
- others, specify

Others, please specify

TOTAL

30.00

13.75

43.75
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VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: During the year under review, there were no such
penalty / punishment imposed over the company and their officials.

Type Sections of the Brief Details of Penalty / Authority Appeal made,
Companies Act | Description | Punishment/ Compounding | [RD/NCLT/ if any (give
fees imposed COURT] details)
A. COMPANY: NIL
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTOR: NIL

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT: NIL

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

Sub-Total - - - - -
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Annexure -D

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited,
Plot No. 38, Sector A, Zone D,
Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar, Odisha.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited, (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms, and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31t March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has
proper Board-processes listed and compliance —mechanism in place to the extent in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other records maintained by ARSS Infrastructure
Projects Limited (“the company”) for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder :
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ( ‘SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder :

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made therunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings :

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations 2011

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock

purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable during the period under review)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable
during the period under review),

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 the
Companies Act and dealing with Client; (Not Applicable during the period under review),

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable during the
period under review); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not Applicable during the
period under review);

(vi) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and other applicable Labour Laws :
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The new Listing Agreement under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited on 2™ day of December, 2015 & National Stock Exchange of India Limited on 2™ day of December, 2015.

During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc., mentioned above.

We further report that, there are various pending legal cases by and against the Company, the impact & contingency of which
are not reasonably ascertained in our Report.

We further report that, pending the completion of investigation by Central Bureau of Investigation - CBI against the subsidiary
company ARSS Damoh — Hirapur Tolls Private Limited, its directors and guarantors including ARSS Infrastructure Projects
Limited (being corporate guarantor) as per the FIR filed by Central Bank of India, the impact & contingency on the Company are
not reasonably ascertained in our Report. However the Amount of OTS was fully paid by ARSS Damoh — Hirapur Tolls Private
Limited during the year and satisfaction of charge has been filed w.e.f. 11/06/2020 with the Registrar of Companies, Odisha.

We further report that, the Company has delayed in depositing statutory dues of GST and filing of GST returns with the
Statutory Authorities during the year under review.

We further report that various petitions by Financial Creditors and Operational Creditors of the Company are filed before
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata, which are now transferred to Cuttack Bench, under various provisions of IBC 2016.
Majority cases of Operational Creditors and Financial Creditors have been settled and withdrawn by the petitioners from NCLT.
However State Bank of India has withdrawn its OTS proposal because of failure of payments as per schedule. Bank of India have
declined the OTS proposal and moved NCLT for initiation of CIRP against the Company. The case is put up for hearing and until
it is admitted or disposed off, we are unable to comment on the future of the cases. Another Operational Creditors ATC Logistics
Co. and Financial Creditor Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited have also moved the NCLT under IBC and pending their hearing, we are
unable to comment on the future of the case.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. After the resignation of Company Secretary w.e.f 30.03.2019, the new Company Secretary was
appointed w.e.f 28.05.2019 with a gap of 57 days, which is in compliance of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act,
2013. During the period Mr. Rajesh Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company has been appointed and acted as Compliance
officer of the company as per the requirement of SEBI (LODR), Regulation.

The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment, there being independent
and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel;

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board meetings are generally carried unanimously and dissenting members’ views, if any are captured and duly
recorded in the minutes Book.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and form an integral part of this report.

Place : - Bhubaneswar For Sunita Mohanty & Associates
Date :- 05.08.2020

Sd/-

CS Jyotirmoy Mishra
Company Secretary in practice
FCS No.: 6556
C P No: 6022
UDIN : F006556B000551861
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Annexure A

To,

The Members,

ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited,
Plot No. 38, Sector A, Zone D,
Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar, Odisha.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place : - Bhubaneswar For Sunita Mohanty & Associates
Date :-05.08.2020

Sd/-

CS Jyotirmoy Mishra
Company Secretary in practice
FCS No.: 6556
C P No: 6022
UDIN : FO06556B000551861
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

[Pursuant to Rule 24A of SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations 2018]

To,

The Members,

ARSS Damoh - Hirapur Tolls Private Limited,
Plot No. 38, Sector A, Zone D,

Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar, Odisha.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by ARSS Damoh — Hirapur Tolls Private Limited, (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms, and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31t March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has
proper Board-processes listed and compliance —mechanism in place to the extent in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other records maintained by ARSS Damoh
— Hirapur Tolls Private Limited (“the company”) for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder :
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ( ‘SCRA) and the rules made thereunder (not applicable to the Company);
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder (not applicable to the Company);

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made therunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings :

(v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) (are not
applicable to the Company as it is a Private Limited Company):-

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc., mentioned above.

We further report that, the company has appointed a fulltime Company Secretary as required pursuant to Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8A of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 on 01.11.2019 implying, there was a gap of 7 months from the start of the Financial Year.

We further report that, as required by Regulation 24 of SEBI (LODR) Amendment Regulations, 2018, one Independent Director
of the holding company should also be appointed as Independent Director of the Company (being the material subsidiary) w.e.f
01.04.2019. The Company appointed the Independent Director on 23.07.2019, with a gap of 113 days.

We further report that, there are various pending legal cases by and against the Company, the impact & contingency of which
are not reasonably ascertained in our Report.
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We further report that, there has been no commercial activities in the Company since last few years and therefore there has
been no regular employees working under it. Hence the company has not been depositing any amount in Provident Fund towards
employer as well as employee contributions.

We further report that pending the completion of investigation by Central Bureau of Investigation - CBI against the company,
its directors and guarantors including ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited (being corporate guarantor) as per the FIR filed by
Central Bank of India, the impact & contingency on the Company are not reasonably ascertained in our Report. However the
Amount of OTS was fully paid by the company during the year and satisfaction of Charge has been filed w.e.f 11/06/2020 with
the Registrar of Companies, Odisha.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors.

The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment, there being independent
and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board meetings are generally carried unanimously and dissenting members’ views, if any are captured and duly
recorded in the minutes Book.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and form an integral part of this report.

Place : - Bhubaneswar For Sunita Mohanty & Associates
Date :- 25/07/2020

Sd/-

CS Jyotirmoy Mishra
Company Secretary in practice
FCS No.: 6556
C P No: 6022
F006556B000504284
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Annexure A

To,

The Members,

ARSS Damoh - Hirapur Tolls Private Limited,
Plot No. 38, Sector A, Zone D,

Mancheswar Industrial Estate,
Bhubaneswar, Odisha

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place : - Bhubaneswar For Sunita Mohanty & Associates
Date :-25/07/2020

Sd/-

CS Jyotirmoy Mishra
Company Secretary in practice
FCS No.: 6556
C P No: 6022
F006556B000504284
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FORM AOC-2

Annexure E

(Pursuant to clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third
proviso for the FY 2019-20 is given below:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:

Sl. No. | Particulars Details
(a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NIL
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements /transaction NIL
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any NIL
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NIL
(f) Date of approval by the Board NIL
(9) Amount paid as advances, if any NIL
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required Nil under first NIL

proviso to section 188

2. (a). Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis with Group Companies.

(X In Crores)

contracts or arrangements
or transactions including
the value, if any

Sl. |Particulars Details

No.

(a) | Name (s) of the related Shivam Condev | Shivam Condev | Shivam Condev | Shivam Condev | Shivam Condev
party & nature of Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd.
relationship (Director’s (Director’s (Director’s (Director’s (Director’s

Relative) Relative) Relative) Relative) Relative)

(b) |Nature of contracts/ Material Sold House Rent Consultancy | Sale of Assets | Crusher Rent
arrangements/ transaction

(c) | Duration of the contracts/ Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing One time Ongoing
arrangements /transaction

(d) | Salient terms of the 0 0.06 0.79 0.25 0.47

()

Date of approval by the
Members /board

11" February,
2017

11" February,
2017

11" February,
2017

11" February,
2017

11" February,
2017

()

Amount paid as advance, if
any (X In Crores)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
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(b). Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis with Joint Ventures.

(X In Crores)

Sl. |Particulars Details

No.

(a) | Name (s) of the related Atlanta-ARSS | ARSS-BMS | ARSS- LGPPL ARSS- ARSS- HCIL
party & nature of JV Jv JV TECHNOCOM ADHIKARYA
relationship PRIYASHIAASHI JV

JV

(b) |Nature of contracts/ Sub contract | Sub contract | Sub contract Technical Sub contract
arrangements/ transaction received received received Charges received

(c) | Duration of the contracts/ Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing
arrangements /transaction

(d) |Salient terms of the 11.47 0.30 0.42 0.13 0.08

contracts or arrangements
or transactions including the
value, if any

(e)

Date of approval by the 11" February, | 11" February,

16" May, 2016

7" November,

16" December,

Members / board) 2017 2017 2018 2005
(f) [ Amount paid as advance, if Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
any (% In Crores)
(c). Details of Remuneration to Directors / their relatives (at place of profit)
(R in Crores)
Sl. | Particulars Details
No.
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(@)

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mr. Anil Agarwal

(Sr. Vice President, COO)

Mr. Sunil Agarwal
(President, CEO)

(b) | Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transaction Remuneration Remuneration
(c) | Duration of the contracts/ arrangements /transaction Ongoing Ongoing
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 0.42 0.42

transactions including the value, if any

(e)

Date of approval by the Members (ratified by the board)

29" September, 2015

29" September, 2015

()

Amount paid as advance, if any (% In Lacks)

Nil

Nil
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of
ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited
CIN : L141030R2000PLC006230
Plot-no-38, Sector-A, Zone-D
Mancheswar Industrial Estate
Bhubaneswar-751 010, Odisha

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ARSS Infrastructure Projects Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31%, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“IND AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) In absence of relevant records, Contract-wise surplus/loss has neither been ascertained nor recognized in compliance with
IND AS-115 ‘Revenue from contract with customers:

b) The company has overdue accumulated secured debts amounting to ¥ 1613.26 Crores out of which ¥ 121.03 Crores subject
to interest reconciliation from 01.10.2018 and ¥ 1492.23 Crores subject to reconciliation of interest thereon from 01.07.2016.
Banks have classified the accounts as NPA. No interest has been charged on these secured debts to the Profit & Loss
account resulting in understatement of loss to that extent and understatement of liability. Secured lenders have served
notices on various dates under section 13(2) of Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement
of Security Interest Act, 2002 for recovery of their dues, Various Secured Lenders have moved to National Company Law
Tribunal towards their recovery of dues under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, and their application is still pending for
acceptance at NCLT Level.

c) Bank statements of Various Accounts have not been provided to us due to same has been classified as Non-Performing
Assets by Respective Banks. So we are unable to ascertain balances and transaction with these banks.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matter: How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

1. Claim receivable amounting to ¥ 133034 Lakhs |*  Evaluate the reasonableness of management’s assessment and
is under dispute/ arbitration. Same are subject to judgement considering the relevant sector and industry specific
the outcome of arbitration and/or reconciliation phenomenon.

proceedings arising out of various contractual | ®  Assessed the individual project wise and case wise outstanding

obligations. Recognition and measurement of the claim receivable. o o . .

same is based on management evaluation. [Refer | ® Discussed t_he status of significant arbitration _clalms with the

note to Note 9: Other Financial Assets] Company’s in house Iegal cognsel and other senior management

personnel and assessing their responses.

* Verified documentation og claim receivable under arbitration.

*  Checked the arithmetical accuracy of the essential calculations
of the management estimate and judgement.

* Reviewed the adequacy of disclosures made in the financial
statements with this regards.

e Based on the above procedures performed by us, we considered
the management’s assessment of recoverability of claims
receivable to be reasonable.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit
or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

I) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that issufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

II) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Ill) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

IV) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statementsor, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

V) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance re